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REPORT OF THE BOARD
Principal activities and review of the business
The One Manchester Group was formed on 1 April 2015 when Eastlands Homes Partnership
Limited and City South Manchester Housing Trust became subsidiaries of One Manchester
Limited, joining together in partnership. One Manchester Limited, the Group parent, is a
Charitable Community Benefit Society (registration number RS007018) and a Registered
Social Housing Provider with the Regulator of Social Housing (registration number 4808).
These group financial statements include the accounts of Eastlands Homes Partnership
Limited, City South Manchester Housing Trust Limited, One Manchester Developments
Limited (Formally City South Manchester Developments Limited), One Manchester Treasury
Limited and One Manchester Property Limited.
One Manchester Limited is a unique social business that looks to innovative new
approaches and partnerships to tackle the issues our neighbourhoods face. The Group
manages a wide range of neighbourhoods, and over 12,000 homes, across south and east
Manchester.
The principal activity of the Group is the provision, management, maintenance and
improvement of affordable social housing. In addition, the Group is working closely with key
agencies for the wider public benefit of its communities; to improve and regenerate those
communities and provide a positive environment for people to live in. The strategic report
considers these activities in further detail.
Following a Group Simplification exercise, that took place 1st April 2019 – two former
subsidiaries: Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited and City South Manchester Housing Trust
Limited formally completed a transfer of engagements of all the trade, assets and liabilities
to One Manchester Limited (parent company of the Associations):




City South Manchester Housing Trust Limited, a registered Community Benefit
Society (registration number 8062 - converted from a company 22nd February 2019)
and a Registered Social Housing Provider with the Regulator of Social Housing
(registration number L4527). This organisation was deregistered 7th January 2020.
Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited, a registered Community Benefit Society
registration number: 8063 (converted from a company 22nd February 2019) and a
Registered Social Housing Provider with the Regulator of Social Housing (registration
number L4396). This organisation was deregistered 7th January 2020.

The Group comprises four subsidiaries that have their own respective Boards of Directors.
The One Manchester Limited Board acts as the Group Parent and oversees the activities of
these wholly owned subsidiaries namely:
 One Manchester Developments Limited. A 100% owned subsidiary of One
Manchester Limited and a private limited company (company number 09246629). The
company changed its name from City South Manchester Developments Limited 13 th
June 2019.
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 One Manchester Treasury Limited. A 100% owned subsidiary of One Manchester
Limited and a private limited company (company number 09456700).
 One Manchester Property Limited (company number 11384233) A 100% owned
subsidiary of One Manchester Limited. It was established in order to enable potential
non-charitable, non-core activity to be undertaken, which is likely to include property
development for sale, joint venture arrangements and providing property
management services to third parties
Qualifying third party indemnity provisions
The Group has qualifying third party indemnity provisions in place for the Board members
of One Manchester Limited – Registered Social Housing Provider.
Compliance with Governance & Financial Viability Standard
The Regulator of Social Housing’s (RSH) Governance & Financial Viability Standard (the
standard) was updated in April 2015 and reviewed in July 2017 to emphasize the
importance of the board’s responsibility for health and safety of residents, to strengthen
stress testing and to ensure that organizations were keeping live their Assets and
Liabilities Registers and using the information contained within them in strategic decisionmaking. This was accompanied by a new code of Practice, which provides guidance to
registered providers to ensure compliance with the Standard.
The overall required outcomes of the Standard are:
 To ensure that there are effective governance arrangements that delivers the aims,
objectives and intended outcomes for tenants and potential tenants in an effective,
transparent and accountable manner.
 To manage resources effectively to ensure registered providers viability is maintained,
ensuring that social housing assets are not put at risk. The Standard requires
registered providers to assess their compliance with the Standard at least annually
and boards are required to report their compliance with the Standard within their
annual accounts.
The definition of assurance means that this is not just an internal and external audit issue.
Boards need to determine where they are obtaining assurance to demonstrate to the
Regulator of Social Housing:
 A clear understanding of asset values, related security, potential losses and potential
chains of recourse. Note that boards need to know exactly what information will be
required in the event of distress and social housing asset exposure in order to value
the assets without delay.
 Evidence of application of the principles.
 The assurance they receive on quality of records.
After being awarded G1 V1 status in an In Depth Assessment carried out by the regulator in
July 2017, our top status scorings were re-confirmed by the regulator’s ‘stability check’ in
November 2019.
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Compliance with the regulator’s revised Governance and Viability Standard was assessed by
the Board in September 2020 for the year ending 31 st March 2020. The Group complies in
full with the Standard.
The Group adopted the National Housing Federation Code of Governance (2015). The
Group complies with the Code of Governance in full. A self-assessment against the code
of governance is carried out annually.
Going concern
The Group’s business activities, its current financial position and factors likely to affect its
future development are set out within the Strategic Report. The Group has in place longterm debt facilities that provide adequate resources to finance committed reinvestment
and development programmes, along with the Group’s day to day operations. The Group
also has a long-term business plan that shows that it is able to service these debt facilities
whilst continuing to comply with lenders’ covenants.
The impact of the COVID-19 outbreak and the Government’s decision on social distancing
have had a significant effect on our activity during the first quarter of 2020/21. However,
extensive work has been undertaken to revise the financial budget for the remainder of the
year, including the formation of an efficiency plan which, combined with other measures
sees the budgeted surplus on ordinary activities improve by just over £2m. This has been
approved by the Senior Management Team and is due to be presented to Board for
approval this September.
Robust stress testing has been undertaken and approved by the Board in May-June 2020
with respect to the long-term financial business plan and Board have considered a wide
range of scenarios and mitigations to manage risk. A further iteration of the Business Plan
and associated stress testing will be presented to Board for approval this September.
We have also introduced processes to monitor cash collection on a weekly basis. This, in
conjunction with cash flow forecasting enables us to review financial stability as matters
progress.
Given the strength of the balance sheet and availability and liquidity of undrawn loan
facilities, the Board believe that, while uncertainty exists, this does not pose a material
uncertainty that would cast doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The Board, therefore, consider it appropriate for the accounts to be prepared on a going
concern basis.
Assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
The Board is the ultimate governing body and is responsible for ensuring that an adequate
system of internal control is in place and for reviewing its effectiveness. The system of
internal control is designed to manage risk and provide reasonable assurance that key
business objectives will be met. It also exists to give reasonable assurance about the
preparation and reliability of financial and performance information and the safeguarding
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of the Group’s assets. The Board recognises that no system of internal control can provide
absolute assurance or eliminate all risk.
Risks are defined as those factors that could adversely affect the achievement of the
Group’s objectives. The internal control framework manages and mitigates risks by
identifying those risks and ensuring controls are in place.
The key elements of internal control include:
 Corporate governance arrangements including the adoption of the National Housing
Federation Code of Governance (2015);
 Board approved terms of reference and delegated authorities for Audit and Risk
Committee, Operations Committee (now called Place Committee), Remuneration and
Governance Committee and Growth Committee;
 The Board agreed a revised Strategic Plan 2017 – 2020 at its meeting in March 2019,
updated to reflect the progress made in 2018 and the strategic activities for 2019. A
review of strategic achievement measures has taken place and our seven strategies
have been consolidated down to five from April 2020 and detail five priority areas;
Strategic influence; Customer focus; Thriving communities; Growth; Health
organisation.
 Strategic and business planning processes within which the Board approves strategy
and business plan objectives supported by a performance monitoring framework;
 Development, monitoring and approval of the long-term financial business plan
updated with the annual budgeting cycle and in response to all significant
environmental changes that includes robust stress testing and assessment of key risks
and respective mitigation analysis;
 Separately, the Business Plan was reviewed by the regulator as part of the In Depth
Assessment process and confirmed our t o p ratings of G1/V1 during July 2017. The
Regulator reconfirmed G1/V1 in November 2019 as part of its normal stability review.
 The preparation and review of annual budgets that are approved by the Board; review
of actual results against the approved budget, and revised forecasts prepared at
three-month intervals. The annual budgeting cycle informs and is informed by the
long term financial business plan when setting the overall resources of the
organisation in both the short and medium term;
 Board approved annual Treasury Strategy to control exposures in connection with
Treasury management activities and regular monitoring of loan covenants and
requirements for new loan facilities;
 Monthly performance indicators to identify trends are reported to Board quarterly to
monitor progress towards objectives and to identify changes that require
intervention;
 A Delegatory framework incorporating Financial Regulations and Scheme of
Delegation;
 Board approved a revised Value for Money strategy in May 2018, reinforcing our
commitment to the Group’s economy, efficiency and effectiveness objectives, the
strategy is being reviewed and will be presented to the November 2020 Audit
Committee and then Board.
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 A formal development appraisal group reviews appraisals of all proposed major
investments in new properties and place regeneration initiatives that are subject to
individual approval by this group prior to approval by the Executive Management
Team, Growth Committee or Group Board as defined within the Delegatory
Framework;
 Our Risk Appetite is reviewed annually by the Board ensuring an up to date risk
management framework is in place for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks faced by the Group;
 The Board approved the implementation of Financial Golden Rules to support
quantification of the Group’s financial risk appetite to augment covenant headroom
monitoring and stress testing at its meeting in March 2017. The 2020/21 business plan
was also reviewed against these Golden Rules as part of the Board adopting the
updated plan in March 2020;
 Savills (our independent financial consultants) presented a review of the Golden Rules
at the May 2019 Board meeting. Board accepted the changes proposed;
 As part of its Covid-19 governance response Board reviewed and updated its Golden
Rules (with the advice of Savills) at its June 2020 Board meeting.
 Audit and Risk Committee develop and approve a risk based internal audit plan
receiving internal audit reports, tracking implementation of recommendations. The
Audit & Risk committee uses the services of PriceWaterhouseCoopers to provide
internal audit services;
 Clearly defined management responsibilities for the identification, evaluation and
control of significant risks;
 Review of strategic risks at each meeting of the Board and bi-annually by the Audit &
Risk Committee. The Audit and Risk Committee also receives updates on the internal
control framework bi-annually;
 Formal recruitment, retention, training and development policies for all staff;
 Board approved whistle blowing policy;
 Board approved probity policy;
 Programme of Board training is on-going;
 Board approved Anti-Money Laundering Policy and an Anti-fraud policy, together
with a Fraud Response Plan, including tenancy fraud, covering prevention, detection
and reporting of fraud and the recovery of assets;
 A comprehensive Business Continuity Plan (BCP) that underwent Internal Audit
scrutiny during 2017 with no recommendations for improvement. The BCP undergoes
annual scenario testing with all relevant staff, facilitated by an external specialist- the
BCP supported the One Manchester Covid-19 response and a lessons learnt review
has informed our current emergency response arrangements including an additional
senior management daily support rota.
 Participation in the Greater Manchester civil contingencies response planning made
up of other housing providers in the region, Manchester City Council and
representatives from all emergency service providers.
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The effectiveness of the controls is assured by:
 Independent assurance by internal auditors as to the existence and effectiveness of
the risk management activities described by management;
 Board / Audit & Risk Committee review and approval;
 External audit;
 External regulatory and other reports; and
 Review and assurance by management.
The internal control framework, the risk management process and fraud register are subject
to regular review by internal audit, which has responsibility for providing independent
assurance to the Board via its Audit & Risk Committee. All reports to Board and Committees
consider risk and risk appetite and separately the Board and Audit & Risk Committee
considers the overarching risk strategy, map and controls bi-annually ensuring quarterly
review.
A fraud register is maintained and is reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee on a
quarterly basis. During the year, there were no dismissals in relation to fraud. In addition,
instances of fraud in relation to tenancies have been investigated and, where fraud has taken
place, actioned and recorded.
The Audit and Risk Committee has received the Chief Executive’s annual review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control for the Company and the annual report of the
internal auditor, and has reported its findings to the Board.
The Board confirms that there is an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant risks faced by the Group. This process has been in place throughout
the year under review and up to the date of the Annual Report and Financial Statements and
is reviewed by the Board. The Board has responsibility for the Group as a whole.
Auditor
All of the current board members have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken
to make themselves aware of any information needed by the Association’s auditors for
the purposes of their audit and to establish that the auditor are aware of that
information. The directors are not aware of any relevant audit information of which the
auditors are unaware.
BDO LLP has expressed their willingness to continue. A resolution for the reappointment of BDO LLP as auditor of the Association is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
By order of the Board

Jane Rothery
Company Secretary
23rd September 2020
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STRATEGIC REPORT
One Manchester – our story
One Manchester is a provider of housing and community services. Formed in April 2015
from a merger between two of Manchester’s largest housing associations – City South
Manchester Housing Trust and Eastlands Homes Partnerships Limited, we currently own
and manage around 12,000 homes in central, south and east Manchester.
As an experienced and trustworthy landlord, we provide good quality homes that are safe,
secure, warm and affordable, and we are proud to be known as a housing association.
One Manchester’s customers have access to a range of tenure options. We provide social
housing for people who cannot currently afford to rent at market rates. We also offer
homes to rent at market rates for when people can afford this option. For those looking to
purchase their own home, we offer schemes such as shared ownership and rent to buy.
We also believe that our responsibilities go much further than providing good quality,
affordable homes. Our view is that housing associations are all about place making. We
exist to play an active role in developing our communities. We help people manage their
money, find work, start-up businesses and stay healthy and well. In directing our attention
to the needs of individual people – the very reason we exist – we aim to create places that
will thrive and prosper.
Our vision is:
To lead, deliver and inspire social innovation across Manchester and the region. We will be
a trusted and dynamic business providing clear direction that creates positive change in our
areas. We will provide quality homes and shape services that improve people’s lives and
attract further growth and investment. We will use our skills and resources to build
resilient, thriving communities.
Strategies to achieve our purpose
One Manchester was formed to face the challenges and maximise the opportunities in the
city and for the people who live here.
Our revised strategic plan 2017-2020 outlines seven strategies that we will focus on. This
will ensure we deliver on our promises to our staff, customers, communities and partners so
that everyone connected to us can benefit from the city’s growth and success. This has been
refreshed in the first quarter of 2020/21 and has been aligned into five corporate priorities.
This reporting period covers 2019/20 and therefore continues to follow the seven strategies
and will adopt the new plan in the next reporting period. The detail below is a Review of
Strategic Achievement Measures against the seven strategies for 2019/20.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
VFM sits across all our strategies and our multi year savings plan, asset and growth plans
are detailed in the specific VFM section of the report. VFM also is a recurrent theme in our
seven-strategy review below detailing their individual contribution to the business as a
whole.
Strategy 1 – Strategic Positioning
1.1 One Manchester is aligned with key strategies of City and Region;
 One Manchester has played a role in influencing the industrial strategy, in particular
to ensure that social enterprise and inclusive growth agendas are reflected. We have
worked with GMCA and other social enterprise stakeholders to support work that is
developing a social enterprise strategy for the city region. We are ensuring that
GMHP and other providers are linked into this.
 Our social investment strategy and approach is well aligned with the Inclusive
Growth agenda, and we are supporting some projects that provide a practical
response to growing inequalities. It also fits well with the Our Manchester approach.
We are updating this in line with current best practice.
 We have also aligned ourselves with sector developments, such as the Together
with Tenants programme, MCC’s housing strategy and developments with the Social
Housing Green paper.
1.2 One Manchester is an influential partner with key players in public, private, not for
profit and voluntary, and community sector and is consulted regionally and nationally by
media, influencers, partners, and stakeholders
 We continue to be an influential partner in GM and beyond, featuring prominently
in partnerships such as the Greater Manchester Housing Providers and the
Manchester Housing Providers Partnership, while being consulted by national bodies
such as the National Housing Federation. This year, we featured in their Great Places
commission as a case study on creating thriving communities.
 Our media presence continues to grow, with One Manchester delivering numerous
speaking opportunities on topics such as social value, development, intervention
into the PRS and low carbon and we continue to be a trusted partner when it comes
to media and partner consultation.
 We are represented on the strategic advisory board for MMUs Faculty of Health,
Psychology and Social Care and we represent GMHP on the Greater Manchester
Social Enterprise Network. We continue to engage and lead work strands of the
GMHP Social Value Group. The Step Up Programme is now being established as a
brand that has support of a wider range of partners including MCC, LCO, Greater
Manchester Mental Health Trust, and the Institute of Place Management. We have
also been recognised as a good example case study with plans proposed to develop
a video case study for the national programme funded by DCMS.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
1.3 One Manchester’s track record of leading consortia and partnerships enables us to
influence and take part in future commissioning, business development opportunities,
joint ventures and acquisitions
We continued to engage with strategic conversations about opportunities across the
city and region, influencing both policy and practice. Examples of this include,
engaging with a wide partnership in relation to food security, working with
Electricity North West to design and implement a project across 3 of our
neighbourhoods reduce fuel poverty, reviewing the Innovation Chain North West
(ICNW) Framework to ensure that Social Value approach is consistent with our good
practice and planning to work with JV north, another major framework to help
influence the social value requirements of its suppliers.
Strategy 2 – Transforming Services for Customers
2.1 Percentage of customers accessing services digitally increased to 30% of customer
transactions
 A review of the purpose and data sources for this measure was undertaken in
October and EMT agreed there were three distinct purposes for digital measures.
We aim to improve customer service through channel choice and propose to use
transactional surveys to identify the customer’s wishes and most appropriate
method of communication/service access.
 There is further work required to identify the numbers of tenants who can interact
with us using digital platforms and understand whether services could be offered via
self-service or information provided online. This information can then be quantified,
baselined and benchmarked with the aim of identifying incremental resources
savings over a 3-year period. At present, the organisation is developing these
measures.
2.2 Customer insight data held on 80% of customers
 The planned survey of customers using an external organisation was postponed due
to the current crisis and investigations are underway to understand whether this
information can be collected via a QL survey as part of our ongoing outbound calling
project.
2.3 95% of customer interactions are resolved at first point of contact
 Over the course of the year, prior to the COVID-19 outbreak, First Time Resolution
Rates gradually improved as large numbers of new starters developed their skills
and performance was tracking at about 84.5% against a team target of 85%. This
represents great progress and has meant more customers have had their enquiry
resolved first time by a contact centre advisor or via an immediate hand off to a
back office member of staff.
 Since the move to home working, first time resolution rates have dropped by about
20% as staff are not as available for hand offs and more enquiries are being
managed through referrals. Anecdotally the speed of referral responses is very good
but some further analysis is being conducted to better understand the customer
experience.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
2.4 95% of customer interactions are fixed first time
 The year-end figure in 2019/20 for repairs completed was 97.3% and this reflects an
increase in performance from 94.5% achieved the previous year. However, it should
be noted that recent reviews have revealed some inconsistencies in process. As part
of the new Performance Management Framework for 2020/21 a revised definition
and methodology will be introduced to ensure consistency of process and
measurement that will ensure consistency and accuracy of reporting.
2.5 Customer priorities & satisfaction measures show year on year improvement
 We conducted our third census customer satisfaction survey in February 2020. The
total number of surveys returned was 853 including 53 leaseholders and 31 market
rent customers. The confidence interval based on social tenant responses only is +/3.24%. The results show that every measure’s score has decreased slightly (every
measure increased in 2019) but all remain above the 2018 results.
 The questions are scored on a 1-10 scale with an average score of 7 accepted as
being ‘in the corridor of satisfaction’. Of the 16 measures, four have a score below 7
compared to just two last year but ten in 2018.
 The overall satisfaction score – ‘taking everything into account, how satisfied or
dissatisfied are you with the service provided by One Manchester’ – returned a
67.7% satisfaction rating from social tenants compared to 71.1% in 2019 and 69.8%
in 2018 – an annual decrease of 3.4%. It is common for leaseholders to have lower
satisfaction with their landlord relative to social tenants and their overall satisfaction
score this year is 49.1%. Market rent tenants were surveyed for the first time and
their overall satisfaction score is 58.1%.
 Institute of Customer Service (ICS) research published in January 2020 reports that
nationally, overall customer satisfaction is falling and is at its lowest level since July
2015. Their benchmark data shows the UK all-sector Net Promoter Score has
decreased by 3 points to 19.4 from its highest ever level, 22.4. Public Services local
(including local councils/fire service/ housing associations/GP surgeries and health
centres/ambulance service and libraries) score is 10.5 and Housing Associations
nationally have a NPS of 6.7. One Manchester has a score of 18 (social tenants) –
considerably higher than the national score and only 1.4 below the UK all-sector
average.
 In summary, the top three issues our residents want us to improve are ‘cleanliness
of the area’; ‘make it easier to contact the right person to help’; and ‘resolve
problems more quickly’.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Strategy 3 – Place
3.1 Place based approach to service delivery implemented and approach to
environmental place management developed in all areas
 Further work has been undertaken throughout the year to address workload and
resource issues across Place Managers and Coordinators. Turnover of staff has
resulted in further changes to approach including the realignment of Community
Development in mid-2019. A project team was established in Place Delivery in
December 2019 and will be in place from March 2020. A review of our approach is
being delivered by Poplar Harca Accents team to support more effective project
delivery. Place coordinators and Place delivery teams will focus on tenancy
management issue and support to residents.


Environmental place management has now been incorporated as a sub-group within
the new Place Steering Group established in January 2020 and we are currently
working on a project plan and actions within that plan.

Strategy 4 – Social Innovation & Partnerships
4.1 One Manchester social value and social innovation activities provide increased social
outcomes and opportunities for our customers and places
 We have continued to create and implement a wide variety of activities, investing in
our communities and customers including a social innovation call seeking to reduce
household food insecurity, drafting a social innovation call to explore scope for
supporting an external social enterprise to provide an assisted gardens service and
commissioning bespoke development support for seven local social enterprises.
 The third round of the Catalyst Fund was launched with 17 of 40 applications
shortlisted to pitch for funding and we have continued to meet with and support the
implementation of several projects linked to previous social innovation calls.
 Work has been instigated to review One Manchester’s approach to delivery of social
value, with a view to devolving responsibility to procuring managers/contract
managers to identifying and managing social value through individual contracts. At
the end of 2019/20, One Manchester had issued 18 contracts that carried Social
Value requirements.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
Strategy 5 – Growth
5.1 Utilise Master-planning of our areas to achieve a whole place approach to
regeneration in partnership; 2 pilot areas identified with planning approval to be secured
on Grey Mare Lane by end of 2020
 One Manchester has progressed its masterplanning proposals for the regeneration
of Grey Mare Lane with full endorsement of the Board. One Manchester plans for
the demolition and re-provision of approximately 120 existing properties on its
estate with additional affordable homes and associated infrastructure, e.g. the reprovision of a new community facility. The programme for investment looks to a
potential 6-year programme.
 One Manchester is working closely with Manchester City Council and local
stakeholders to ensure that design, use and residential offers meet the needs of
local residents, the aspiration of One Manchester and the requirements of the local
authority. In response to COVID-19, progress, in terms of consultation with residents
as part of detailed design has been paused, but it is hoped to begin again as
appropriate with a site start later in 2022.
 One Manchester have co-commissioned a Neighbourhood Development Framework
with Manchester City Council for Ardwick Green. The purpose of the framework is to
provide development guidance for the area for any new build or regeneration in the
area based upon growth of an affordable residential offer and increased commercial
activity. It is hoped that the framework will be consulted later in the year before
being endorsed by Manchester City Councils Executive and One Manchester’s Board.
One Manchester has existing stock in the areas and is in discussions with a
developer on a potential joint development of new homes.
5.2 New homes on site, in programme or acquired (including a range of affordable and
market tenure opportunities led by place) to meet 5-year target of 1043 new homes by
2021;
 275 new homes were built or purchased in 2019/20 and the commentary below
details our continuing excellent work in the supply of affordable homes to our
communities.
 Of the total 168 approved but not committed, the current COVID-19 position means
some schemes will be reassessed. Business plan capacity for growth increased in the
year to 2,570, but this will change again in the light of current business plan stress
testing.
 Social value from growth contracts is reported to Growth Committee regularly and
includes apprentices protected and created, work placements offered, work trials
and guaranteed interview schemes, materials and cash donations and pro bono
support to local charities, community groups and schools, local labour and local
orders commitments.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
5.3 One Manchester will develop a range of affordable and market tenure opportunities
led by place need including delivery of a private sector initiative in two neighbourhoods
by 2020
 One Manchester has continued to acquire properties from PRS landlords to
introduce our effective management into this sector. In particular, to add to our
management of 62 market rented homes in the Ben Street area of Clayton under a
management contract from Manchester City Council we have also looked to acquire
further homes nearby in both Gorton and Openshaw. All these localities have seen
problematic landlord activity and have a substantial One Manchester stock
presence. Our place-based investment approach has addressed some poor landlord
ownership but assisted further our general place management and growth strategy.
 One Manchester has recently acquired a number of homes in Moston, as we look to
develop new homes and a presence in that area of the city, close the Moston
Campus site that we intend to develop out for affordable homes this will provide a
core asset base in which to develop our place approach.
5.4 Revenue from growth investment will be recycled to help cross subsidise affordable
homes and other social investment outcomes
 In 2019/20, core market rent income has stabilised as we reached full occupancy on
Aaben, Baker and Ben Street with revenue streams providing strong income into the
business. Added to this, our affordable housing development programme saw more
homes sold for shared ownership than previously projected and at, on average,
larger shares which brought in greater capital. On balance, a number of schemes
were delayed in completion that meant that further returns were delayed. All
affordable home ownership tenures have performed strongly to date.
 Due to COVID-19, handovers in the last part of 2019/20 have been frustrated as
occupation has been restricted, most notably on the Clockworks in Moss Side. As we
come out of the lock-down, the Growth team will look to increase occupancy in a
managed way.
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Strategy 6 – Organisational Capacity
6.1 Staff survey reflect positive trends in creation of all one team
 The results from the 2019 staff survey demonstrate that 52% of colleagues felt that
the whole organisation works together as one team, which was down 4% from the
year before. The measures with the highest levels of satisfaction were
understanding the type of behaviour expected, belief in One Manchester's work and
the vital role it plays in the community. The measures with the lowest levels of
satisfaction are stress about the future, and seeing the whole organisation working
together as one team. Measures that have stayed exactly the same are the role One
Manchester plays as an employer and in the community, its values and expectations
of behaviour. The response rate was very good at 80%. 330 questionnaires were
returned out of a potential 413. This is lower than 2018 (92%) but is still at the high
end of typical staff survey response rates.
 We are undertaking a fundamental review of how we engage with our employees
and have already commenced with a ‘pulse’ survey which colleagues are being
encouraged to fill out regularly. Insights gathered are informing our employee
welfare approach and other organisation wide approaches.
6.2 One Manchester has a strategy to address the changing employment landscape and a
plan and priorities in place to deliver new ways of working
 Preparatory work was conducted during the year as part of the exploratory work for
the Ahead of the Curve initiative, which is now part of a wider change programme.
Consultancy firm Korn Ferry were appointed to provide analysis on strategic
workforce planning, equality, diversity and inclusivity, and leadership structure.
Work will continue within the Healthy Organisation Corporate Priority.
6.3 Deliver savings through the Efficiency Plan
 The Budgets & Business Plan were approved at March 2019 Board meeting. The
Savings plan was amended in March 2019 Business Plan to better support the
Organisation’s ambitions & strategic direction whilst maintaining focus on an
efficiency drive within core operations; specifically around £100k of savings to be
realised through the switch to the Travis Perkins stores model from FY19/20, with
additional savings of £150K to be delivered from FY20/21, rising to £400K from
FY24/25, bringing total cumulative savings to £500K, and an additional capital outlay
of £1m in year 5 to support the delivery of such efficiency savings.
 As noted below, the Travis contribution towards the savings plan of £100k was not
realised in 2019/20 whilst the Treasury placement realised an interest saving of
£636k in 2019/20.
 Additional modelling was undertaken in the Business Plan to include impact of £75m
Private Placement in October 2019. Budget principles were discussed at December
2019 Board meeting and the 2020/21 Budget was presented to EMT for approval in
February 2020 with an updated efficiency plan, agreed as part of the March 2020
Business Plan. The efficiency update is included in the VFM section of these accounts
at £1.5m cumulative over the next three years combining core margin improvement
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with an ongoing focus on maintaining the Overall Social Housing Cost Per unit in the
lower quartile.
The March Management Accounts detailed a Repairs overspend of £2.1m impacted
by both cost of job and job volume increases, recognising that we have not been
able to realise planned savings of £100k through the switch to the Travis Perkins
stores model. A deep dive review of repairs will be actioned to establish the root
cause of this overspend. The efficiency plan was revisited and recast as part of a
detailed 2020/21 budget review and with the business plan papers to March 2020
Board showed a strong recovery in the operating margin in excess of 30% from
2022/23 onwards.

6.4 One Manchester trading surplus, covenant performance and savings meet business
plan and VFM targets
 The Group generated a surplus of £12.7m for the period, against a budgeted surplus
of £11.8m and the detailed commentary in the financial review highlights financial
performance in the year.
 The Group meets all the banking covenants.
 In terms of the Treasury Strategy, One Manchester secured £75m to fund future
activities and help us to achieve our growth aspirations. The interest rates achieved
means that we anticipate saving of the order of £2.1m on average per year in net
interest payments over the life of our 40-year business plan. The Private Placement
in October 2019 improved the Base March 2019 business plan with debt repayment
moving in from year 25 to 22 and the average cost of capital reducing from 5.24% to
3.67% .
Strategy 7 – Financial Resilience
7.1 Tenants benefit from reduced energy costs as a result of investing in improved energy
efficiency and sustainability
 One Manchester has identified and targeted asset investment in a variety of projects
as part of energy saving investment. These include Passivhaus standards, ground
source heat pumps and programmes of cavity wall insulation, loft insulation and
over cladding.
 The introduction of Passivhaus standards has delivered significant reductions in
costs (£1.20/day in 2015 to £0.31/day in 2019/20). Current and future schemes
include an external envelope solution and photovoltaic panels, air source heat pump
installations and replacement heating systems to 3 high rise blocks comprising a
Hybrid Air Source Heat Pump system.
7.2 Evidence of income secured and debts reduced to protect income and increase
financial resilience for customers
 The Beacon strategic project continued to work with Shift, social change design
consultancy to research and design change, helping customers survive a shock and
bounce back as quickly as possible. Focusing on Universal Credit, the testing phase
implemented two approaches directly with customers together with different ways
of working within One Manchester. Feedback from customers and staff were
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positive and further work will continue to take forward the learning and outputs to
continue to help customers become more financially resilient.
The One Money team have continued to provide advice and guidance to customer.
Customers have received assistance and financial gains for tenants through
increased income or charity applications to the value of £1,295,937 and we have
dealt with debts totalling £951,731.

COVID-19
The World Health Organisation classed Covid-19 as a pandemic on 11 March 2020.
Following that announcement the UK Government introduced various measures to address
the impact in the UK, resulting in lockdown from 23 March 2020. We adopted a number of
measures to ensure the safety of tenants, staff and business partners during this time. We
undertook the following:









With the social distancing measures, we decided to postpone major component
replacements such as kitchens and bathrooms and stop non-emergency repairs;
Construction was halted in line with Government recommendations to protect our
staff and business partners. All uncommitted schemes were put on hold;
Continued with our program of gas safety testing, balancing the risks of carbon
monoxide poisoning against the need to protect residents and staff from C-19;
Provided regular contact with vulnerable tenants to ensure that they had access to
food and required medicines with support provided from deployed resources from
across the business;
Provided guidance to those residents who faced financial difficulties and established
a £0.5m hardship fund working in conjunction with Greater Manchester partners;
Adopted working from home for all colleagues where possible. Where colleagues
were not able to work from home, they were re-deployed where appropriate to
provide support to other areas of the organisation including reaching out to our
vulnerable tenants.
We undertook further and robust stress testing of our financial plans supported by
our independent Treasury Advisors Savills.

These measures, inevitably, had an impact on the performance of the organisation in a
number of areas:
 We are tracking rent collection on a weekly basis, and current reports show an
average weekly loss of around £0.1m per week. The impact of this is estimated to
last for a further two quarters, after which we anticipate levels returning, with
arrears expected to be recovered in the following year. This is reflected in the
updated Business Plan to be presented to Board for approval this September;
 We have increased our void loss provision in the quarter one budget reforecast from
1% to 1.5% to reflect current trends, driven by the timing of the handover of the
Clockworks and Oasis schemes and the social distancing requirements introduced by
the Government;
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Whilst disposals through Right to Buy and Right to Acquire have slowed down,
completing 104 RTB/RTA sales in 2019/20 compared with a budget of 136, and being
16 units behind budget as at the end of the first quarter in 2020/21, applications
continue, and we have actually seen an upside in our rent forecasts as a result of the
slowdown in RTB/RTA disposals;
We have furloughed those colleagues we have not able to redeploy and accessed
the Government Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. The support received from this
scheme has totalled £121k in the first quarter of 2020/21;
COVID-19 working restrictions have impacted both development and repairs
activity, with the development programme being re-phased by 6 months in the
revised Business Plan;
Major repairs were £0.6m behind budget as at the end of the first quarter in
2020/21, with internal works being switched out for external works in the
September 2020 budget update to allow for COVID-19 working restrictions;
Routine maintenance activity has also slowed, with only emergency work completed
during the nationwide lockdown, resulting in a small underspend in the first quarter
(offset by the deficit in the trading account) – the expectation is that as restrictions
are lifted normal activity levels will resume, with an additional backlog to process;
Expenditure on PPE has increased to ensure the safety of those staff members that
do need to enter residents properties, and this is reported separately in the monthly
management accounts;
We have also incurred an additional £0.1m in IT equipment expenditure to facilitate
remote working.

The impact on global markets appears to have had little effect in other areas that are
outside of our control, these include:
 A decreased deficit / increased surplus on our defined benefit pension schemes as
asset values across our three schemes increased in total by £6.3m.
 Increased valuations of our market rented properties provided by external valuers
by £1.8m (5.2%);
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Business model
The One Manchester Group was formed 1 April 2015 when Eastlands Homes Partnership
Limited and City South Manchester Housing Trust became subsidiaries of One Manchester
Limited. One Manchester Limited, the Group parent, is a Charitable Community Benefit
Society and an asset owning Registered Provider of Social Housing. The Group operates
within the City of Manchester.
At it’s meeting of 25 July 2018, the Board accepted a business case to progress
simplification of the One Manchester Group. The two stages agreed were conversion of
Eastlands Homes Partnership and City South Manchester from charitable companies to
Community Benefit Societies, and secondly their merger into One Manchester through a
process of transfer of engagements creating a single organisation, One Manchester, with
effect from 1st April 2019.
Anthony Collins Solicitors were appointed as lead lawyers and advisor to the project to
steer the Board and officers successfully through the process. Property transfers have been
completed and One Manchester holds the registrations and certificates previously held by
EHP and CSM.
The One Manchester Strategy is overseen and directed by the Group Board and Executive
Team. The strategy is delivered though our operating model of One Manchester Limited
providing Executive Management, Business Strategy, Housing Management, Asset
Management, Growth and Support Services to the Group’s registered provider of social
housing. We deliver our property services in-house, with a directly employed team
responsible for gas safety, responsive maintenance, grounds maintenance and estate
cleaning.
The One Manchester Group adopted an efficient treasury structure upon its formation with
a treasury vehicle, One Manchester Treasury Limited that provides the private finance
facilities for the Group. This structure allows for a more efficient use of the Group’s security
and private finance facilities enabling more efficient borrowing costs. The loan facilities and
lending covenants apply to the Group’s subsidiary registered providers and One Manchester
Treasury that collectively form the loan facility obligors.
The treasury section of the financial review of the year ended 31 March 2020 details our
current historic and undrawn facilities. In June 2017, an additional £25m facility was put in
place with the Royal Bank of Scotland to support the Groups growth programme. From
merger our new homes developed growth aspiration has more than doubled.
In December 2017 and in response to the Grenfell Tower tragedy an additional facility of
£25m was put in place with Barclays to support our cladding replacement programme.
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In October 2019, One Manchester agreed a new £75m facility with Legal & General
Investment Management (LGIM) as part of a wider refinancing package, advised by Savills
Financial Consultants and arranged with support from NatWest Markets. The private
placement takes the total funding available to £251m. This will support One Manchester in
delivering its new strategic growth aims of more than doubling its development pipeline to
2,400 affordable homes, with the main delivery by 2025/26.
As part of the deal, the arrangements with existing lenders – RBS and Barclays – have been
renewed at £78m and £98m respectively. The existing term loan facilities have also been
restructured with both banks.
One Manchester Developments Limited is the vehicle through which the Group develops
new housing, performing the role of principal development contractor for the Group,
ensuring efficient development of new homes in accordance with our growth and
diversification strategic priority.
The Group (for the purposes of statutory reporting in 2019/20) comprises:





One Manchester Limited, the Group parent and a Registered Social Housing Provider.
One Manchester Developments Limited
One Manchester Treasury Limited
One Manchester Property Limited

One Manchester Property Limited (Company number 11384233) was incorporated on 26
May 2018 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited with
general commercial objects. It was established in order to enable potential non-charitable,
non-core activity to be undertaken, which will include property development for sale, joint
venture arrangements and providing property management services to third parties.
One Manchester Group Structure:
The graphics below shows the group structure and the relationships between the members
as at the balance sheet date of 31st March 2019, following the completion of the first stage
of the group simplification exercise being the conversion of CSM and EHP from companies
limited by guarantee to community benefit societies (with registrations completed on 22nd
February 2019):
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Pre-Conversion:
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Post-Conversion:
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The second stage of the group simplification exercise was to transfer the engagements from
CSM and EHP to One Manchester Limited. The group structure has now become:

All assets and liabilities were transferred from Eastlands and City South to One Manchester
Limited at their carrying amounts in 2019. The Associations have now de-registered.
As part of the simplification exercise, the Board has also approved a change in name of City
South Manchester Developments Limited to One Manchester Developments, actioned by
Companies House on 13th June 2019.
It follows that this structure will form the basis for statutory reporting for 2019/20 onwards.
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Financial review of the year ended 31 March 2020
Overall, the Group, before actuarial gain, generated a surplus of £12.7m (2019: £16.2m) for
the period, against a budgeted surplus of £11.8m. We have sustained high demand for our
properties, but the main factors contributing to the variance of £0.9m, excluding the
financial accounting implications of FRS102 were:
 The surplus on the sales of housing properties is £0.7m ahead of budget. Whilst the
total number of completions for the year at 104 units is lower than that for the prior
year (136 units), the surplus achieved per unit is higher than budget (£49K against
£47K). Of the 104 completions, 23 units were Right to Acquire (where we keep the full
disposal proceeds within the Group). Whilst this number is also below the prior year,
we are now seeing valuations exceeding £200K in certain areas. For properties
previously owned by City South, our proceed-sharing agreement with Manchester City
Council has also ended, such that from 2020/21, One Manchester will retain 100% of
the sales proceeds achieved through Right to Buy disposals;
 We have spent £3.6m in relation to the Cladding and Fire Safety issue following the
Grenfell Tower tragedy in June 2017 (with £3.2m capitalised). This is £0.9m behind
budget (prior to capitalisation) due to a three-month delay in the sprinkler installation
programme, compounded by the imposition of COVID-19 working restrictions. Work is
now forecast to complete in FY2021/22. The £1.4m favourable variance in
capitalisation of cladding and fire safety work for the FY2020/21 budget follows
approval to capitalise the sprinkler installation programme by our external auditors
BDO;
 Major Repairs spend at £4.6m (£1.4m was capitalised) is £2.1m lower than budget
(prior to capitalisation) due to programme delays, with projects including Energy
Efficiency and the Heating Replacement Scheme at Duffield, Hornchurch and Royce
being rolled forward into FY2020/21. This is the result of a combination of precontract design and procurement delays and on-site restrictions during the COVID-19
pandemic lockdown;
 Social housing net rental income for the Group is £0.9m (2%) adverse to budget. This
is the result of a budgeting error in relation to properties which were disposed of in
the previous financial year through the Right to Buy process (totalling 92 properties
since August 2018), but not removed from the list used to set the budget for FY
2019/20. Upon identifying this error, an alternative, more accurate rent debit report
has been used to set the FY2020/21 budget. With an average rent of £79 per week,
the full year impact of this is £0.4m. The balance of the shortfall is due to the lost rent
relating to delays in scheme completions at Princess Road (Rent to Buy), South Street
(Affordable Rent) and Chapel Street (Rent to Buy), compounded by the lockdown
associated with the coronavirus pandemic;
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 Shared Ownership sales are £1.6m ahead of budget as a result of completing a higher
proportion of first tranche sales at a higher value than originally budgeted.
 We have maintained our commitment to invest in our communities, with Place, Skills,
Health and Wellbeing expenditure at £1.7m for the financial year, only slightly behind
budget by £0.2m. This includes £0.6m towards education programmes, £0.2m
towards social innovation, £0.2m to apprentice opportunities, £0.3m to financial
awareness programmes and £0.1m in grants for community groups.
Group Financial Results
Highlights of Comprehensive Income
Turnover
Operating costs
Operating surplus
Surplus after taxation, before actuarial gain
Actuarial gain / (loss)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Highlights of Financial Position
Social housing properties Net Book Value at cost
Non-social housing properties at valuation
Cash at bank and in hand
Net current assets / (liability)
Debt drawn
Revenue reserve
Number of homes in management
Social housing
Market rent
Total
The Group Statement of Comprehensive Income is on page 63.
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2020
£'000
60,268
(45,983)
18,551
12,673
7,276
19,949

2019
£'000
57,613
(40,644)
23,307
16,244
(4,770)
11,474

£'000
208,366
39,019
40,038
24,918
(155,943)
29,027

£'000
190,650
35,161
11,264
(4,255)
(123,899)
9,078

11,938
306
12,250

11,794
282
12,076
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Company Financial Performance
The company achieved a surplus for the year of £12.7m largely in line with Group
performance. This recognises Group simplification occurring this financial year and all rent
generating assets now belonging to the single company (One Manchester ‘Association’)
now that City South Housing Trust and Eastlands Homes Partnerships no longer exist.
Group Financial Performance
Group turnover increased in the year by £2.7m, being 4.6%, to £60.3m. The increase
recognises a £0.8m increase in income from social housing lettings reflecting:
 The final year of a four year reduction in social housing rents of one percent
announced in the UK Government’s July 2015 budget; and
 Disposal of 104 properties during the year at valuations materially exceeding both
budgeted and historic levels.
Shared ownership sales at £3.1m are up on prior year (£2.2m), and are £1.6m ahead of
budget, due to completing a higher percentage on the first tranche than originally planned
and achieving a higher sales value. Chapel Street (Atlas Place) was budgeted to complete
40% for 14 units, but is expected to complete 60% over 22 units with higher market values
on all property types. South Street was budgeted to complete 35% over 12 units but
reservations indicate 49% on the 12 units again with higher sales values. We have also
completed another sale at Rainshaw Lane that was planned to occur in 2018/19,
contributing a further £0.08m to the favourable variance.
Operating costs increased in the year by £5.3m (13.1%) to £46.0m. The principal changes in
the financial year ended March 2020 compared with the prior year are:
 £1.4m increased expenditure in Planned and Routine Maintenance driven by
increased demand in day-to-day repairs (10% increase in the demand of repairs to
over 55,000), an increase in price of the average repair (24% - From £90 to £112) and
heightened disrepair claims;
 £1.3m increased expenditure in Management Costs, £0.5m of which relates to IT
expenditure incurred to create a platform team to review our IT infrastructure
combined with consultancy costs and additional equipment required to facilitate
home-working following the nationwide lockdown. A further £0.25m of this increased
expenditure relates to a provision for potential one-off staff costs, with another
£0.25m relating to additional multi-storey decant costs within Housing Management;
 £1.0m increased expenditure in Shared Ownership Cost of Sales mirroring the
increased income in shared ownership sales;
 £0.7m increased expenditure in Development Costs not Capitalised reflecting the
increased pace of the development programme;
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 £0.5m increased expenditure in Service Costs, mainly due to reduced collection of
contributions towards new communal heating costs (£200k) and increased costs of
repairs for gates, door entry and fire alarm servicing (£100k).
The total Comprehensive Income for the year was £19.9m (2019: £11.5m) for the year.
Cladding & Fire Safety
Following the tragic fire and loss of life at Grenfell Tower in the London Borough of
Kensington and Chelsea on 14 June 2017, the Department of Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) required all registered providers of social housing to identify high-rise
buildings that were clad with similar materials. One Manchester Group has sixteen high-rise
developments, of between nine and sixteen floors, with Aluminium Composite Material
(ACM) cladding.
Detailed tests were undertaken during July and August 2017; including the systems present
on the Group’s medium and high-rise properties. The outcome of these more detailed tests
reported that thirteen of the blocks did not meet the standard and three blocks passed,
adequately resisting the spread of fire to the standard required by the current building
regulations. Of the three towers that originally appeared to pass the tests, it has
subsequently been identified that the fire barrier arrangement was not comparable with
the system that passed the test, and the decision was taken to replace the areas of ACM
cladding on these three blocks.
The Group is committed to ensuring the safety of its customers and the Board resolved to
install sprinklers and fire alarms to it medium and high-rise buildings to ensure the fire
safety of its customers. The cladding on all sixteen blocks has now been replaced with a
new cladding system. The programme has been funded from internal resources with £6.9m
support from the Government (out of a total programme spend of £15.6m).
Fire alarm installation has also been completed to all communal areas. Heat detectors have
been installed to approximately 80% of flats at blocks, with the remainder being accessed
on a programme that will be supported by in-house resource where access is difficult.
At the start of 2020, we started a programme to install sprinklers to our high-rise tower
blocks. This is a £3m programme and will be completed over the next 3 years. The
programme was put on hold following the COVID-19 lockdown measures. It has since been
agreed that the programme will restart in September 2020.
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Group Financial Position
The financial position remains strong with social housing properties shown at historic cost
of £208.0m (2019: £190.7m), representing an increase of 9.1%. This is due to additions of
£22.8m (including 44 shared ownership, 16 affordable rent and 187 rent to buy and 2
General needs), work to existing properties of £1.8m and over-cladding spend of £2.9m,
offset by the 104 property disposals through RTB and RTA discussed above and
depreciation. This compares to an underlying valuation, on an Existing Use Value – Social
Housing basis, of the Group’s properties used as security of £430.6m at the end of the
period. This valuation does not include those properties owned, developed or acquired but
not currently used as security, totalling 2,833 units, which could be valued and charged
subject to legal due diligence.
The 306 investment properties are held at current Market Value. The total value of the
investment properties including those under construction is £39.0m. Market values in a
number of our areas have seen some upward movement in values since the prior year,
resulting in a surplus on revaluation of £1.8m for the 2019/20 financial year.
In November 2016, the association purchased a new office for £4.5m to provide a central
location for the majority of the Group’s employees and deliver long-term financial efficiency
savings for the Group as it rationalised its existing office estate. In 2019/20, we have spent a
further £0.25m on the Lovell House chiller plant equipment, cycle shelter, CCTV and car
park, alongside a further £0.03m on the refurbishment of Quattro House and Eastlands
House.
We have continued investment in Gorton Hub (2019/20 £0.01m), a community building to
provide integrated opportunities between a range of services including employment and
skills, health care, Gorton Library and a range of other services to help to improve the
wellbeing of the local population and further support the regeneration of Gorton.
As referred to above within ‘Growth Strategy’ the Association continued the development
of 15 new market rent homes in Levenshulme and purchased six others during the year
incurring capital expenditure of £2.0m. The investment of £2.0m and the revaluation gain in
the year of £1.9m result in the Association’s Investment Properties increasing to
approximately £39.0m at 2020 (2019: £35.2m).
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The cash balances and current asset investment balances have reduced by £2.8m:
 The underlying business generated £18.7m of cash (2019: £22.8m) before debt
servicing of £26.4m (interest and capital repayments);
 Investing activities decreased during the year to £13.6m (2019: £16.6m). This includes
expenditure of £22.6m (2019: £22.4m) in relation to the development of new homes
in the year, including £4.7m on The Box (51 rent to buy units), £4.2m on Princess Road
(105 rent to buy units which completed in Q4 2019/20), £2.8m on Hyde Road Oasis
(14 rent to buy and 12 shared ownership units), £2.2m on Crossley Street (land
purchase), £1.7m on Albert Road (being the 90% balance of the purchase of 15
tenanted market rent properties), £1.4m on Grey Mare Land (including the purchase
of land), and £1.2m on Chapel Street (a mixed tenure scheme of 64 units completed in
2019);
 There have been loan drawdowns of £50.0m in the year (2019: £7.5m)
The cash inflow in the year is £28.8m above the position at the end of the previous
financial year. This is, in the main, driven by the £32m of net new funding. The cash flow
from operations (£18.7m) was offset by the expenditure on existing and new properties
(£22.62m) and the interest paid (£8.4m) in the year.
Principally, because of the increase in cash balances following the private placement, the
Group is reporting net current assets of £21.6m as at 31 March 2020 (2019: £4.2m net
liabilities). The Group has access to significant secured loan finance as discussed below. The
revenue reserve now shows an accumulated gain of £29.0m (2019: £9.1m gain), reflecting
the surplus made during the financial year.
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Group Performance
Group Operating Surplus as % of Turnover
(excluding fixed asset disposal surplus)

2020

2019

23.7%

29.45%

Rent losses (voids and bad debts as % of rent
and service charge receivable)

1.61%

1.4%

Current Rent arrears (gross arrears as % of
net rent and service charge receivable)

5.9%

5.6%

100.03%

100.61%

Average re-let time in days

31.3

25.7

Net debt to turnover

1.92

1.98

Covenants
Interest cover as per loan agreements
(Barclays / RBS)

2020

2019

2.32 / 2.28

2.52 / 2.55

9,647

9,527 / 9,461

190% / 561%

218% / 526%

5.21%

5.74%

Rent collected % excluding current arrears

Net Debt per unit (2019 Barclays/ RBS)

£'s

Asset Cover
(Barclays / RBS)
Effective interest rate
Financial covenants
The Group has three financial covenants, being:

 Interest cover - calculated as the sum of: Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation
and Amortisation (EBITDA), add surplus from property sales, less capitalised major
repairs; expressed as a ratio in comparison to net interest paid. In 2020, the tightest
ratio was 2.28 (2019: 2.52) which provide significant headroom against the minimum
ratio of 1.0.
 Net debt per unit - has increased to £9.6K (2019: £9.5K) being significantly less than
the £20k per unit maximum. The increase recognises debt has been repaid of £5.0m
(2019: £5.3m) and cash levels, although remaining strong, have reduced to fund new
development activity during the year.
 Asset cover – expressed as a percentage of the EUV-SH of the properties divided by
the drawn loan facilities, resulting in cover for 2020 of 244% across the combined
facility (2019: 325%) significantly exceeding the tightest covenant requirement of
115%.
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Cash flow
The Group has had a net inflow of cash and cash equivalents during the year of
approximately £28.8m (2019: net inflow £1.3m). The cash balance as at 31 March 2020 was
£40.0m (2019: £11.3m). Cash inflows and outflows for the year under review are set out in
the Group Statement of Cash Flows. Net cash inflows from operating activities are
principally from the management of housing stock.
The most significant net cash outflows are from investing activities; the spend on
development and acquisition of new properties £22.6m (2019: £22.4m), and major repairs
capital expenditure to existing properties of £4.6m (2019: £7.3m). We have made
scheduled debt repayments in the year of £18.0m (2019: £5.3m) and £8.4m interest paid
(2019: £7.2m).
Treasury management


Treasury management is the responsibility of the Board. The strategy is set annually,
approved by the Board with quarterly review and monitoring reports.



Borrowings at the financial year-end were £155.9m (2019: £123.9m) from Barclays
Bank Plc, Royal Bank of Scotland Plc (RBS) and Legal and General Investment
Management (LGIM); the Group also has fully secured facilities of an additional
£70m (2019: £67.7m) available to draw.



In October 2019, One Manchester agreed a new £75m facility with Legal & General
Investment Management (LGIM) as part of a wider refinancing package, advised by
Savills Financial Consultants and arranged with support from NatWest Markets. The
private placement takes the total funding available to £250.9m. As part of the deal,
the arrangements with existing lenders – RBS and Barclays – have been renewed at
£78m and £98m respectively. The existing term loan facilities have also been
restructured with both banks.



The Treasury Strategy aims to ensure that loans are not all due for repayment in any
one year. The Barclays debt of £73m and the RBS debt of £33m have agreed phased
repayments until 2035. The effective interest rate in the year was 5.21% (2019:
5.74%).



The Group’s approved long term financial business plan confirms the existing
secured facilities and cash balances meets its development and planned investment
for a period of two years.



The Group manages the risk of fluctuations in interest rate through a mixture of
variable and fixed rate debt. As at 31 March 2020 the Group had 1.2% of debt on a
variable interest rate, 98.8% was on a fixed rate (the Group’s Treasury Policy states
that a minimum of 70% of debt should be fixed). The fixed rate loans are on an
embedded basis and the Group has no standalone derivatives.
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The Group borrows only in sterling so does not have any currency risk. Any cash
surpluses are invested in approved UK institutions in accordance with the approved
Group Treasury Management practices.

Accounting policies
The policies are set out in pages 70 to 83 of the financial statements. Accounting policies
are consistent across the Group.
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This VfM review for 2019/20 reflects the activity and achievements of One Manchester in
its fifth year reflecting progress against our seven strategies (reported on separately
above), progress within the business and against our VFM metrics, The overall One
Manchester Social Housing Cost Per Unit and ongoing and between years savings plans.
One Manchester believes that it fully complies with the requirements of the VfM Standard
and a separate Compliance statement has been prepared and adopted by our Board.
Our Value for Money Approach


To enhance the return on our assets focussed on our growth programme, our
existing housing stock but also encompassing our offices and our people



Make best use of our money by buying intelligently, reviewing our procurement and
contract management arrangements



Increase productivity focussed on the best use of information systems and
technology



Maximise income on both commercial and social rental elements



Improve the efficiency, quality and performance of our maintenance service



Achieve growth without a corresponding increase in our overheads

To support our strategic aims One Manchester has eight VfM objectives. The first three
themes, our savings work and plan, our costs and our assets, place and growth are
considered in more detail below whilst themes 4-8, procurement, regulatory compliance
and tenant scrutiny, performance, customer insight and satisfaction and investment in
colleagues form part of the earlier seven strategy review and our wider commentary
through the accounts.
VfM objective 1 – Our Savings work and savings Plan
The VfM work in 2019/20 was set against the context of the 2019/20 budget and the last
year of the four year -1% real terms rent reduction. The 2019/20 budget looked to balance
resources against the rent cut but was also shaped by an investment need in key areas –
there was a strengthening of our Health and Safety Team with an overall cost of £227k,
increased investment in ICT software and support at £249k, staffing costs in our
Opportunities Team increased by £129k, further investment in the Development Team at
£117k and strategic projects of £150k. A wider business pay award at 2% (the first
consolidated award from the rent reduction announcement in 2015) was implemented at a
cost of £257k. Additional within year costs were also incurred i.e. a business wide staffing
provision of £250k as the change programme took shape.
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Against this, the most material work in VfM focussed on two key strands. The first strand
was identified savings against the recast savings plan with the implementation of the new
repairs stores managed by Travis Perkins. The first year’s predicted £100k savings were not
realised and were instead overtaken by increased repairs volumes and increased costs of
repair and disrepair within the year leading to a £2.3m budget overspend. The average
repair cost is currently £112 compared with £90 last year and repairs volumes increased
from 50,000 in 2018/19 to 55,455 in 2019/20, with disrepair costs at £360K against the
£240K budget.
With this impact on our operating margin and VfM savings plan a considerable amount of
work was undertaken in building and setting the Board approved budget for 2020/21, which
recognised and accommodated both reactive repairs cost pressures but also achieved a
rebalance of our operating margin from 23.7% (2019/20) to 29.2% (2020/21). Further
ongoing work following the Covid-19 lockdown has resulted in a budget reset for 2020/21.
This also identified a further within year saving of £376k against our three year updated
£1.5m savings target (see below) and the timing impact of Covid-19 has also improved the
proposed operating margin to 31.6%.
The second key strand of VfM work in 2019/20 was a focus on longer-term treasury
requirements. Our first area of work was to revisit our existing funding arrangements with
both The Royal Bank of Scotland and Barclays. The existing facilities were updated, margins
revisited, revolving credit funds (RCF) extended and £12.5m of historic facility cancelled.
With those arrangements confirmed, we successfully undertook our first Private Placement
in October 2019 and secured £50m, with two deferred tranches of £12.5m (£75m in total)
with a new funder, Legal and General Investment Management. The placement achieved
long dated funds of up to 35 years at a consolidated rate below 2.7% and had a significant
financial impact against our initial interest rate estimate of 4.25% and our longer-term
business plan assumptions of 6.5%. The treasury work, which does not influence our
operating margin or social housing unit cost per unit measures, has both a short-term
budget and long term structural impact. Our modelled October 2019 updated interest cost
for 2019/20 management accounts identified a within year 2019/20 interest saving of up to
£650k, practically at year-end the whole Treasury exercise realised a first year saving of
£636k.
The full effect of the placement will also affect interest costs over the next 35 years. Our
business plan update identifies interest cost savings of the order of £690k in each of the
next four years, but then climbs to an annual saving of £2.25m for the remaining life of the
facilities. The overall impact has been a full 40-year business plan saving of the order of
£84m. This also brings forward the net debt repayment year, which was predicted to be 25
years at March 2019 to 22 years as at October 2019 and our overall weighted cost of capital
has reduced from 5.24% at March 2019 to 3.67% at October 2019 . Clearly, as interest costs
are reduced this has a long term positive impact on our banking EBITDA- MRI interest cover
and provides additional capacity for services, asset investment and new homes growth.
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One Manchester has maintained a rolling savings plan from merger in 2015 and that was
revisited and updated for the March 2020/21 budget and business plan. The updated
savings target (detailed below) confirmed over the next three years is set at £500k per
annum with an overall target of £1.5m at the end of year 3 (2022/23). Our updated budget
work for 2020/21 has identified £376k of embedded savings against that first year £500k
target. At the same time and in parallel a £500k hardship fund has been put in place to
support local community projects and meet local needs through the evolving Covid-19
crisis.
Amended Savings Plan
With just over £8m of savings realised in the four years from the creation of One
Manchester in April 2015 – March 2019, the March 2019 Plan assumed savings to reach a
relatively modest £0.5m by year 6 given a range of cost pressures and investment in new
posts.
Detailed review of the 2020/21 Budget has however shown that these costs are not
sustainable if we are to achieve and maintain a desired operating margin of around 30%,
control our Overall Social Housing Cost per Unit Measure and begin to generate additional
surpluses to start to meet the emerging medium term challenges of a post Covid-19
economic downturn, possible further austerity, and investment in Carbon reduction and
energy efficiency in our existing and new stock.
The savings targets have therefore been updated in the March 2020 Plan to include
incremental savings of £0.5m per annum for the next three years:
 Year 1 £0.5m
 Year 2 £1.0m
 Year 3 onwards £1.5m
With a sensitivity to increase this further in year 4-5 by two further increments of £0.5m:
 Year 4 £2.0m
 Year 5 £2.5m
 Year 5 onwards £2.5m
A series of savings recommendations will be presented as part of the Budget and Business
Plan update to Board in September 2020. This will also incorporate detailed work with
budget holders across the organisation and emergent savings identified as part of the CoStratify review of the IT infrastructure.
VfM objective 2 – Our Costs


Using Global Accounts and benchmarking to understand our costs for delivering
services, the quality this provides and how we compare with others.
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Understanding our unit costs is a key VFM measure against the Standard and we
have adopted and included all the Standards VFM core measures in the Metrics
table below.
Broadening VFM objective 2 as “Our Costs and Metrics” provides a simple way to
adopt the key measures of the VFM Standard as detailed below.
Recognising that our revenue costs, and our income will be the direct drivers in our
operating margin and impacts (positive and negative) in both will drive that. It also
becomes a proxy of efficiency and how that maximizes our growth and reinvestment
plans. We have a vigorous decision making process in place to challenge what we
spend, the how and why.
Gearing, ROCE and the EBITDA measures provide an indication of meeting our
covenant commitments, measuring financial returns against our wider charitable
objectives and further debt capacity.
By utilising the ‘headline social housing cost per unit’ (CPU), we can see how we fare
with others in the sector. Using this methodology, One Manchester, at £2,582 for
2016/17, ranked in the top quartile. For 2017/18 & 2018/19 the values of £3,075 &
£3,077 were impacted by the increased costs of major repairs with the towers
programme. Our draft out turn for 2019/20 of £3,195 and immediate business plan
predictions maintain that top rank quartile. Our current and future direction analysis
below is particularly important to us in maintaining and managing our future
financial strength.
Unit growth, part of the metrics table, is a separate strand under our third VFM
objective - Our assets, place and growth.

The table below details historic actual; draft accounts for 2019/20 and budgeted and
Business Plan predicted overall HSHCPU and breakdown through to 2023/24.

40

ONE MANCHESTER LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2020

Value for money statement, priorities and future direction (continued)
Table 1: unit cost measures – actual and target

Since 2015/16 (except for 2016/17), our HSHCPU has remained at £3,100 - £3,200. The
increase from 2018/19 to 2019/20 is largely due to increased expenditure in responsive
repairs. Whilst maintenance costs start to fall from 2020/21, we see a corresponding
planned increase in major repairs spend reflecting our investment programme works (other
than 2021/22). This major repairs increase of circa £500 per unit increases the predicted
overall headline cost significantly in 2022/23 and this increased investment stays at this
level for a number of years.
Table 2: sector comparison – actual and target overall cost per unit
One Manchester £'000/Unit - Actual 2018/19 Costs and Projected Costs 2019/20 to 2022/23
2018/19
Actual
CPU

Quartile
Position

2019/20
Actual
CPU

2020/21

Estimated
Quartile
Position

CPU

2021/22

Estimated
Quartile
Position

CPU

2022/23

Estimated
Quartile
Position

CPU

Management

1.14

1.23

1.22

1.20

1.16

Service Costs

0.20

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.26

Maintenance

0.71

0.83

0.76

0.71

0.69

Major Repairs
(incl. Capitalised)

0.87

0.69

0.95

0.80

1.36

Other Costs

0.15

0.20

0.24

0.30

0.30

Headline Social
Housing Cost

3.08

3.20

3.41

3.26

3.76

Estimated
Quartile
Position

Regulator of Social Housing (RSH) All RP Sector Data - 2018/19
Management

Service Costs

Maintenance

Major Repairs

Other Costs

Headline Social
Housing Cost

Upper

1.27

0.72

1.25

1.09

0.43

4.69

Median

1.00

0.40

1.01

0.84

0.22

3.69

Lower

0.83

0.24

0.86

0.62

0.10

3.18

Please note: the estimated quartile positions are based on the RSH sector data for 2018/19 and are an indication as to where the
organisation would sit without using mid-upper and mid-lower markers.
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In sector comparative terms, our overall cost per unit remains top quartile (lower cost)
performance throughout this period, except for 2022/23. This gives an indication of the
ongoing overall efficiency of the business. Management costs are predicted to be upper
quartile over the next four years. They remain a key focus as we move forward to set the
2021/22 budget and the movement down whilst positive, will be subject to detailed review.
The only other measure hitting upper quartile being major repairs. This reflects a significant
commitment by the business to consistently invest in our stock, including the cladding
replacement, which can be viewed positively.
The significant increase in major repairs per unit in 2022/23 of over £500 per unit has
clearly affected our overall target figure, moving from lower quartile to median.
Value for Money Metrics
This is our third report against the regulator’s VfM metrics introduced in 2018. The table
below details historic actual, draft accounts for 2019/20 and budgeted and Business Plan
targets through to 2024/25.
Table 3: value for money metrics – actual and target (as at March 2020)

Note: The detailed calculation of the metrics follow specific definitions to ensure consistency across the sector . The
referenced values below follow those definitions.
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The table combines the key measures at the heart of the VfM Standard. The key elements
to draw out are:














New Supply: the evolution and growth in new homes delivered from merger is aligned
to our growth strategy. The programme started to accelerate in 2017/18 and the
business is now formulating its growth aspirations for 2021/22 and beyond and is clearly
demonstrated in our reinvestment and new supply delivery metrics.
In real terms, our growth programme has been expanded from 585 new homes at
merger to an overall programme with homes planned of 2,570 by 2034. To date this
includes 654 additional and new homes delivered from merger.
For 2019/20, 275 new units were built or purchased, 254 new social and affordable new
homes demonstrates an ongoing real commitment to affordable supply.
The total growth in our social housing stock is impacted by continued disposals; a
number of tenants retain the Right-to-Buy or Right-to-Acquire as a vehicle to home
ownership. One Manchester saw 104 properties sold in the year.
Reinvestment: strong and similar performance over the last two years as our new
homes programme gained momentum. Actual investment spend in new homes and
existing stock was comparable at £27.4m 2019/20 and £28.2m 2018/19. The new
homes element climbed between the two years from £20.9m to £22.8m in 2019/20.
Gearing: our debt profile shows the combined effect of future debt used to deliver
homes through to 2020/21. The actual decline between the last two years is set against
both a growth in our property asset base between years, an overall increase of £17.7m
and debt. As noted elsewhere in this update a significant amount of work has been
undertaken with treasury in 2019/20. Overall, net debt between years has only
increased by £2.573m to just over £113m but the mix has moved markedly and it can be
noted that reinvestment continues to be strongly supported by the strong within year
cash generation performance of One Manchester. Taking the placement of £50m in
October 2019 (at low all in rates) allowed us to payback down our Revolving Credit
Facilities and also cancel £12.7m of historic debt realising a within year saving of £636k.
Practically, One Manchester retains significant cash/equivalent balances of £40m
against actual increased debt of £153.2m. This is considered as mainly a timing issue
before they are utilised in delivering new homes from 2020/21. Accordingly, as cash is
used up, gearing then climbs in 2020/21 as further tranches of placement money are
drawn, £12.5m in both 2020/21 and 2021/22 and a draw down and long term fix of
£20m with Royal Bank of Scotland in October 2020.
Unit Costs: these are explored in some detail above.
EBITDA MRI measured here is similar to the measure used by our lenders within our
covenant assessments. However, there is one main difference where our lenders
covenants include surplus on sales of housing properties within the calculation, and the
VfM metric does not. This explains the difference on EBITDA for the VfM measure (for
2019/20) of 159.6 vs the lender covenant measures of 2.32 / 2.28.
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The general trend in our ability to meet our financial covenants with our funders was
impacted by the tower’s expenditure in 2017/18 and 2018/19 (although we remained
fully compliant). As noted in the Organisational Capacity section of the statement, the
2019/20 operating surplus and operating margin saw a decline from 29.4% to 23.7%. As
EBITDA-MRI is a relationship of operating surplus, the reduction is mirrored in this
measure (see also below) and remains at similar levels in later years as the business
continues to invest in its new homes’ growth programme with associated increased
interest costs.
Operating Margin: our operating margin performance has been significantly impacted
this year with a reduction from 29.4% to 23.7%, a reduction of 5.7%. At a detailed level
the operating surplus excluding the sale of housing has reduced from £16.9m 2018/19
to £14.3m in 2019/20 – a reduction of £2.6m on an increased turnover from £57.6m to
£60.3m, £2.7m. The margin, which can be used as a measure of efficiency, was
generally better than the sector norm in 2016/17, but again impacted by towers
expenditure in 2017/18, before moving back to the sector median and then falling
below the sector median of 25.8% (as detailed below) in 2019/20 by 2.1%, with the
main drivers noted above. Detailed work on the 2020/21 budget has returned that
target margin to 29.2%, noting that additional resources for maintenance are included
in that budget. This is a margin comfortably above the sector norm and the September
2020 budget revision shows a further positive change to 31.6%.
ROCE: at 6.58% for 2019/20 the key between year movement down from 2018/19 has
two key elements, the total return (includes the operating surplus including the homes
sales element) declined from £23.3m to £18.5m against an increased capital employed
of £282m (an increase of £50.3m from £231.7m). As the capital employed figure
includes the significant cash holding arising from the placement (in current assets and
deducts short-term creditors) the main impact is cash. Going forward, the cash holding
is invested in new homes and the overall ROCE remains comparable in the following
years with a strengthened operating surplus at a level around 5-6%.
EBITDA MRI Social Housing follows the pattern of the base EBITDA measure and as
noted does tighten in later years as the business continues to invest in its new homes’
growth programme with associated increased interest costs. It does affect total EBITDA,
but to a lesser extent, due to the increased non-social income generated, timing, and
limited market sales activity.
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The following table sets out how our 2019 performance compares to relevant peer groups
(NB: LSVT 7-12 Years North West was not selected, as there are only seven organisations in
that group).

VfM Metric

OM
2019
(%)

OM
2020
Draft
(%)

OM Trend

Table 4: value for money metrics 2019 – global accounts sector comparison

Reinvestment

14.82

13.18

New supply
social

0.27

New supply
non-social

All RP’s
(217 total) (%)

LSVT North West
(26 total) (%)

LSVT 7-12 Years
(14 total) (%)

Median
2019

Variance
to OM
2019

Median
2019

Variance
to OM
2019

Median
2019

Variance
to OM
2019



6.24

8.58

8.24

6.58

12.63

2.19

2.13



1.43

-1.16

0.78

-0.51

0.62

-0.35

1.51

0.16



0.00

1.510

0.00

1.510

0.00

1.51

Gearing

58.0

54.3



43.40

14.60

38.50

19.50

27.40

30.6

EBITDA
MRI

163.4

159.6



184.20

-20.80

192.10

-28.70

180.9

-17.5

33.1

26.1



29.20

3.90

25.50

7.60

28.10

5.00

29.5

23.7



25.80

3.70

23.700

5.80

25.30

4.20

10.1

6.6



3.80

6.30

4.9

5.20

4.60

5.50

Operating
Margin
Social
Housing
Operating
Margin –
Overall
ROCE

The reinvestment metric looks at the investment in properties (existing stock as well as new
supply) as a percentage of the value of total properties held. It demonstrates that finances
are being put to good use by maintaining and improving stock as well as adding to the asset
base. Nationally, at the median, RPs are spending the equivalent of 6.24% of their assets’
value on reinvestment. Stock transfer organisations have higher median reinvestment rates
– at 13.18% we are markedly above the LSVT NW median at 8.24% (global accounts 2019).
This new and existing homes investment indicates that we are fulfilling our promises to
tenants by investing funds to improve stock and develop new homes.
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New supply: at the median RPs are developing new social housing in the region of just over
1% of their stock in a year. Our combined result of 2.29% is an excellent outcome against
both all RPs and the LSVT measure. The result of 2.13% for new social supply demonstrates
both a commitment to our ongoing growth aspirations but also in realising real affordable
new supply in Manchester. At a strategic level, the smaller number of market rent
properties does generate an additional surplus to cross subsidise the delivery of new social
homes. Our draft accounts for 2019/20 indicate a positive direction of travel for both new
supply metrics.
Gearing measures the ratio of debt to assets using a concept similar to mortgage lenders’
loan to value measure. While a gearing ratio above the median may demonstrate
willingness to leverage assets to fund development, this measure has no real polarity.
Gearing can also be affected by funders’ lending covenants, which may set conditions in
relation to borrowing levels. The results show the majority of RP’s appear to use borrowing
prudently with ratios below 50%. Associations with development programmes tend to have
higher gearing than those without – our result of 54.3%, higher than the median results,
demonstrates that and reflects the reinvestment metric, but only in part. It should be
noted that the majority of historic debt was to support decent homes ‘catch-up’ repairs,
and as we move forward our debt profile increases to support the development
programme. In addition, the bulk of our stock is historic social stock of both originating
associations and came across at transfer at nil value and the current carrying value of this
stock purely reflects the investment programme works undertaken on them through
Decent Homes. The value of assets is therefore more a reflection of Existing Use Value –
Social Housing valuations. Open market values utilised for Right to Buy calculations (and
before significant tenant discounts) demonstrate that properties in the open market are of
a scalar 3 or 4 times at least their current book values. These values applied in the
calculation would demonstrate a much-reduced gearing calculation.
EBITDA MRI measures financial performance before factoring in financing decisions,
accounting decisions or tax environments. It is an approximation of cash generated;
presenting it as a percentage of interest shows the level of headroom on meeting interest
payments for outstanding debt. This metric is meaningful for RP’s who borrow to invest and
cover interest payments with their operating surplus. Whilst it is important for earnings to
cover interest payments, a high interest cover ratio could mean there is additional capacity
for investment. As a result, this measure also has neutral polarity. At the median points,
RPs earnings are more than double their interest payments. As noted, our performance sits
below the median of LSVTs in the North West and has been particularly affected by budget
and spend in 2019/20. The pattern for later years is more influenced by increasing interest
costs supporting the new homes programme and an increasing spend in major repairs
towards the latter years of the table. This mirrors the cost per unit impact of increasing
major repairs in the latter three years from 2022/23.
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The overall operating margin measures the amount of surplus generated from turnover on
a RP’s day-to-day activities and is a key measure of operational efficiency as it is influenced
by both income and expenditure. Various factors can affect an operating margin including
rent charges (lower rents mean lower margins). Margins of 20%+ indicate financial stability
and whilst clearly impacted in 2019/20 by budget pressures the 2020/21 budget and
business plan show a strong return to margins around 30% and at the upper performance of
LSVT’s.
ROCE – Return on Capital Employed – shows how well a RP is using both its capital and debt
to generate a capital return. It is a commonly used ratio to assess the efficient investment in
capital resources. The metric supports RP’s with a wide range of capital investment
programmes. However, it can be influenced by the nature of a RP’s property portfolio e.g.
balance between market and social rent, age of stock, historic debt and basis of valuation.
Generally, higher returns are seen as better and the national median point was 3.8%. Our
result of 6.6% represents a positive measure against the sector median although tempered
by the relatively low carrying value of the social housing asset base.
VfM objective 3 – Our Assets, Place and Growth













Maintaining the condition of our existing properties, investing in place and building
new homes is critical to safeguarding our financial strength by developing over 1000
new homes
Asset Performance Evaluation (APE) modelling - to measure the long term
sustainability of, and to enable the identification of cost appropriate options to
improve both the financial performance and social return on investment of our
stock
Use a Net Present Value (NPV) calculation as an indicator of the financial return on
investment in our existing properties
Stock condition surveys (56% external survey completed) to support and inform the
delivery of our Asset Management Strategy
Place leadership is a core component of One Manchester’s vision. We will seek out
opportunities to extend our service offer and build upon our strong links with our
communities
In constructing our growth plans, we will develop a range of housing products that
fit with the place and meet the demands of a thriving City and support the
residential growth strategy of Manchester and the region
Look at master planning opportunities, notably Greymare Lane
Look to maximise income on both commercial and social rental elements
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Performance during the financial year
Below is a brief summary of the key areas and a further review is carried out in the Value
for Money self-assessment available on the Group’s website.
Asset Management strategy
Following our previous Stock Condition survey in 2017/18, which completed 56% sample, it
has been agreed to undertake a further sample that will equate to a total 75% sample. It is
planned to undertake the work by the end of 2020. The updated results will be
incorporated within the Group’s Business Plan to form the basis of our annual asset
investment programme budget as well as our 5-year plan and 40 year projections.
The Group’s Asset Performance Evaluation model (APE) is updated annually. In addition to
this, we use the CROHM model to evaluate the energy performance to individual
properties.
This informs our investment decisions based on financial viability (on a net present value
basis), sustainability (measured using key community performance indicators) and the level
of energy performance, enabling us to target underperforming areas in our asset
management and Place area plans.
We have carried out a range of energy improvements with the aim of reducing customers’
fuel bills and thus contributing to alleviating fuel poverty in the communities where we
operate.
The range of measures includes traditional improvements – energy efficient boilers, loft,
cavity and external wall insulation but also includes renewable measures such as ground
and air source heating and solar PV solutions. We continue to explore opportunities to pilot
innovative solutions that will have long-term benefits for our customers, our communities
and contribute to local and national targets for achieving net carbon zero, such as trialling
PV with battery storage to 5 properties. The purpose of the trial is to provide evidence
relating to how a scaled up scheme will generate profit/income from the provision of
renewable energy services.
Using the latest version of the APE model, we can now identify our poorest performing
assets at a granular level. The current version of APE highlights just 55 units (0.46% of our
managed stock), spread over six Place areas that have a poor NPV, and we keep these
homes under annual review in terms of their long-term future. We are in the process of
further analysing these results via a new piece of software SHAPE which now includes
revised ‘Social Indicators’ that can be used throughout the business and which includes
data from the Indices of Multiple Deprivation, Internal data and data from our CROHM
model.
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In an earlier version of APE, it identified four asset groups resulting in further analysis and
option appraisal. Two of those places included (Beswick and St Georges) and we have
undertaken a master planning feasibility. All four areas have been considered on a longterm investment basis, on a ten-year timeframe, and we will return to each one.
However, we are currently focussing on the Beswick area, which forms part of a wider
regeneration in the east of the city. Eastlands Regeneration Framework is an initiative led
by Manchester Life (the City Football Group and Manchester City Council in partnership)
which includes within its boundary an estate owned by One Manchester known as Grey
Mare Lane. We are working jointly with Manchester Life on detailed planning and design
feasibility with a view of taking firm proposals to Board later in the year. The estate
regeneration is planned to provide new homes as well as re-provision and a commercial
and retail offer over an eight-year period. The master planning proposals fall within our
Growth Strategy that is further described below.
Our programme to replace cladding to sixteen tower blocks commenced has been
completed. The programme has been funded from internal resources with £7m support
from the Government.
At the start of 2020, we started a programme to install sprinklers to our high-rise tower
blocks. This is a £3m programme and will be completed over the next 3 years
A programme to replace the heating systems at the three high-rise blocks (Royce Court,
Duffield Court and Hornchurch Court) has also been completed. A further programme to
replace heating systems a Platt Court, Worsley Court and Bickerdike Court started on site in
January 2020.
We are also involved in a bid for funding to provide replacement heating systems to Mill
Court and Fulton Court. If this bid is successful, the existing systems will be replaced with
Renewable GSHP solution.
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Growth strategy
The Group Financial Business Plan has committed to, and allocated resources for the
development of 2,570 homes by 2034, representing a fundamental change from the March
2019 Business Plan (2,429 homes). Table 1 below shows the unit breakdown:
Table 1: March 2020 Business Plan Growth Update by Unit
Unit Detail
Current Programme
Growth - Grey Mare Lane
Growth - Eccleshall
PRS Acquisitions
Units Completed at 31 January 2020
Total

1,190 units
321 units
400 units
200 units
459 units
2,570 units

March 2020 business plan completed January 2020

The current programme has not changed materially in terms of the unit numbers delivered,
however, the timings of this programme show slippage from the March 2019 expected
position. The current programme allows for the completion of the Shared Ownership
Affordable Homes Programme (SOAHP) grant allocation, some miscellaneous
purchases/refurbishments and delivery of six further units under the homeless families
programme.
The Homes England affordable programme is the Wave bid submitted for 500 affordable
units including 100 new social units. The Wave extension bid announced autumn 2019 has
allocated 109 units and we are awaiting the next grant programme. The timings of the
programme have been updated slightly from that submitted to Great Places following
review of deliverability and better information available, and it is aimed to be delivered
between 2022 and 2024.
The Grey Mare Lane master planning programme delivers a total of 321 units, including 124
re-provision of social units to be delivered over the next eight years. Timings of the
programme have been reviewed to ensure deliverability but are still contingent on a
number of external factors.
The future affordable homes programme has been introduced at the tail end of the Grey
Mare Lane and Wave delivery to reflect a future tranche of development on potential land
opportunities that may arise over the coming few years. The programme delivers units in
the same proportion as the Wave bid (i.e. 20% social) and uses the same grant rates as
those submitted in the bid.
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The ‘PRS’ programme reflects the acquisition of 50 PRS units per year over four years at
£100k per unit + inflation. This reflects the Board commitment to the delivery of 300 units.
The more prudent position in cash terms has been reflected, i.e. outright purchases,
however, the delivery of some of these units may be through lease arrangements.
Table 2 details our progress from 2015 as the newly merged business moved into new
homes development at scale for the first time. The 654 completions over that period reflect
the full range of tenure types.
Table 2: Completed Schemes
Units by Tenure
Affordable Rent
Social Rent
Intermediate Rent
Shared Ownership
Rent To Buy
Market Rent
Total

Completed
39
51
3
90
191
280
654

On Site/In
Contract
67
12
0
74
94
1
248

Approved Not on Site
29
18
0
19
102
0
168

Total
135
81
3
183
387
281
1,070

Our programme has accelerated in the intervening period and it is encouraging that our
new homes development programme has increased in both scale and momentum. Overall
we have 902 homes either completed or on site with a further 168 approved for
development.
In line with the Group’s Business Plan, we are on track to deliver our target of 1,000+ homes
by 2021, with our revised business plan target of 2,000+ homes to be delivered over the
next eight years. The programme is supported by Homes England grant to the value of
£53.5m and is being delivered across a range of tenures. Completed schemes by March
2020 include low carbon technology and the first older person’s specialist accommodation.
In addition to our new homes programme we offer a management and maintenance service
to external partners. This fits with our place strategy and aspirations to have a positive
intervention in the private sector. This is not our only intervention as we seek to address
the following issues in the private rented sector of the communities we operate in:
 poor quality housing stock
 lack of maintenance or adherence to decency standards
 poor energy standards
 absent or rogue landlords
 lack of control over lettings
 limited availability of large family housing
 affordability and homelessness
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We are working with partners MCC, RPs, developers and investors and other stakeholders
to develop a range of PRS interventions as well as providing direct interventions through
our own growth programme. These interventions include:
 Homelessness – acquiring larger family homes to support families currently in bed
and breakfast accommodation;
 Acquiring properties to support people with significant or long term disabilities who
cannot access the mainstream housing market;
 Temporary Accommodation – working with MCC to find ways of supporting people
in temporary housing;
 Housing First – adopting Housing First principles to secure long term solutions for
rough sleepers;
 Purchase and management of PRS properties directly or on behalf of other partners;
and
 Working with MCC on selective licensing pilots and in Housing Affordability Zones
that sit within our area of operations.
To address the lack of housing supply in the region we are a leading partner in a joint
venture between RPs and the GMCA to set up an investment fund to deliver over 500
homes for sale in the next 5 years. Through the proposal, the individual Local Authorities
provide sites with the RPs providing the funding to support the proposal. The aim is to start
schemes on site in 2019.
As well as working jointly with external partners, we are expanding the range of internal
maintenance services that we can offer in our communities. We are now providing services
to the following external organisations:
 Arawak Walton Housing Association – responsive repairs and refurbishments;
 Big Life and primary schools – Grounds Maintenance services; and
 New Longsight Housing – responsive repairs and void improvements.
Income generated by this activity amounted to £0.3m in 2019/20. We continue to look for
further opportunities to develop this area of operations where it is cost effective to do so
and meets our place aspirations.
As part of our ambition to provide our services on a commercial basis to other organisations
we have set up a Property Company that will manage our non-charitable products and
services that at present are limited but we aim to expand. This activity may be in the form
of:
 Investment activity that involves joint ventures (JVs) or special purpose vehicles
(SPVs) to be set up with external partners;
 New build or acquisition of stock that is not subject to regulatory monitoring by
Homes England or the Charity Commission;
 Provision of products or services for others that are not regulated by Homes England
or the Charity Commission;
 Sale of products or services commercially that return a profit; and
 Other non-social housing activity that is not subject to regulatory monitoring by
Homes England or the Charity Commission.
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Risk and uncertainties
The six top risks in order of net risk are:
Risk
Coronavirus, CVD-19 - The risk
that the virus develops at a scale
that impacts on the provision of
OM core services, buildings and
offices become unavailable has
been realised , there is a
significant impact on the
availability of staff to carry out
key community and office
functions, and tenants in isolation
or with the virus cannot be
supported in their homes. Strong
likelihood of tenants being
homebound and possible loss of
life.

Mitigation and controls
Ongoing tracking of national and GM advice and
working closely with GM housing providers. Standalone
CVD 19 detailed risk register. OM undertook a quick
response to the emerging virus as a BCP exercise. The
programme has now embedded and meets daily. The
group structure has been refined with a clear division
between detailed planning and decision-making. The
full structure includes all members of the leadership
team. Main elements of the BCP documentation has
helped provide information on key tasks. Additional
cleaning, ICT kit and monitoring key service delivery
ongoing and daily briefings informing communications.
Enacting general work at home, limited external
meetings and monitoring tenant offer.
Sources of assurance include weekly detailed reports to
EMT and Board on the Crisis Response Programme with
clear Key Metrics and decision-making. Structured team
meeting and programme skills followed. Office staff
have capability to work from home. Front facing teams
have reasonable equipment but this will need to be
monitored. Governance arrangements and scheme of
delegation that support the needs of the project.
Working budget is available to support the project.
Both the budget and BP for 20/21 to be reviewed in
September to ensure all financial impacts understood.
Detailed stress testing undertook and shared at Board
on April 29th and revisited on the 24th of June.
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Health and safety compliance there is a risk that health and
safety compliance is breached
resulting in serious detriment and
reputational damage.

Restructured M&E Team, which has systems in place
for mandatory Gas Safe and Electrical Testing. Policies
in place covering all compliance areas (Gas, Electric,
Legionella, Asbestos, Fire). Restructured Health, Safety
and Compliance Team reporting quarterly on
compliance across all relevant areas. Property
compliance sub-group in place. H&S risk assessment of
all offices with additional design recommendations.
Sources of assurance include Internal Audit of H&S
annually and Quarterly H&S and Compliance reporting
to the H&S Committee and Board. External specialist
advice sort on fire safety compliance in residential highrise blocks. Latest external Gas Safe audits have given a
low risk status. External audits by Morgan Lambert for
gas and electrical compliance. Budget increase for
electrical testing expansion. Monthly management
review of compliance and quality audits and key
compliance risks added to organisational monthly
compliance dashboard.

Development - there is a risk that
developing at scale with new
product mix cannot be achieved
within target times and within
budget and that this is adversely
affected by contractor poor
performance, delays on site,
planning,
Brexit,
MCC
affordability strategy, carbonneutral agenda, impact of London
landlords in the northern market
place and changing economic
conditions.

Stand-alone Growth Risk Register splits associated risks
into 12 separate components and details the
mitigations for each of these. Includes development
mix, place, funding, systems, skills and resources,
contract management, programme delays, product
demand, contractors’ performance, internal structure.
Alternative site options are being considered.

Sources of assurance include Development Appraisal
Group (DAG), Growth Committee, Internal Audit of
development procurement, legal advice on contractor
performance, Proval appraisal modelling tool.
Additional Brexit Risk Register in place. Update each
cycle to Growth Committee and Board by Director of
This has been further impacted Assets and Growth.
by CVD-19 contractor close down,
a slowdown in project handover,
actual physical handovers and
new safe working practices.
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Universal credit and rent
collection – there is a risk that
the roll out of Universal Credit
impacts tenants’ ability to pay
and adversely affects rent
collection. The risk is now
increasing with a surge of UC
claims with the effect of CVD-19.

Changes to the arrears recovery process now in place.
Use of predictive analytics on the impact of Universal
Credit and behaviour. Budget amendments to Universal
Credit rules will ease impact for some customers. New
and additional reporting of UC collection levels.

Fire - there is a risk that the One
Manchester does not adequately
respond to the changes to
Building Regulations and the
findings of the Hackett Review.

Standalone Fire Risk Register has been replaced with
operational cladding project risk register. MCHLG
funding has been received.

Business Planning – there is a
risk that the savings identified in
the business plan (£1.5m) are not
delivered and that we fail to
maintain our financial viability
rating and breach loan covenants
and golden rules.

Business planning allows for 1% rent reduction until
2020 at which time CPI plus 1% is restored for five
years. Positive stock condition survey and removal of
LHA cap for social housing strengthens position as does
recent government announcement that it will cover
part of the cost of tower block cladding. Close
monitoring of covenants and golden rules especially in
relation to growth programme in place.

Sources of assurance include Internal Audit during
2019/20. Customer financial resilience project in place.
Rent collection statistics and monitoring including
collection and arrears rates. Ongoing sense check
against activity and performance against other NW HAs

Sources of assurance include external specialist advice
on Fire Risk Assessments carried out at levels 3 and 4.
Savills support business planning. Fire review work
supported also be other external advice eg TENOS. Dr G
Coupar review gave work on Fire related H+S a strong
good outcome.

Sources of assurance include external support in
business planning from Savills. External Auditors.
Internal Audit includes annual financial controls audit.
New efficiency plan of £1,500k in place by 2022/23 in
the 2020 BP. Initial COVID 19 stress testing also
modelled for March 2020 Board.
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The Board of One Manchester Limited is the Parent Board for the One Manchester Group
and comprises 12 Board members as follows:
 7 Independent Board members who are neither employees, Residents or Local
Authority Persons
 2 Resident Board Members
 1 nominated member from Manchester City Council
 2 co-optees appointed in accordance with Rule D11 of the Association’s constitution
The Company Secretary and Executive Management Team attend all meetings of the Board.
In January 2020, Nicole Kershaw was appointed as the new Chief Executive, of the One
Manchester Group, following the retirement of the former Chief Executive, Dave Power, at
the end of 2019. Executive Officers do not currently serve on the Boards of the One
Manchester Group – but work with them to lead the Executive Management Team in the
delivery of the corporate vision and priorities.
Three other subsidiary companies complete the One Manchester Group namely One
Manchester Treasury Limited, One Manchester Developments Limited and One Manchester
Property Limited (all being subsidiaries of One Manchester Limited). They all have their own
separate Boards governing their activities.
Board members are remunerated within the National Housing Federation recommended
scale.
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One Manchester Limited has adopted the National Housing Federation Code of Governance
(2015) (‘the Code’) for itself and its subsidiaries.
The main principles of the Code are:
 The Board must be effective in the strategic leadership and control of the organisation
and act wholly in its best interest. Board members must ensure that the interests of
the organisation are placed before any personal interests.
 Each Board must be clear about its duties and responsibilities. These must be formally
recorded and made available for all existing and potential board members. Each
Board must be headed by a skilled chair that is aware of his or her duties as leader of
the Board.
 Recruitment to board vacancies must be open and transparent and based on the
Board’s considered view of the skills and attributes required to discharge its functions.
The Board must select or appoint new members objectively on merit and must
undertake regular appraisals of its members and of the Board as a whole.
 The Board must act effectively, making clear decisions based on timely and accurate
information. Committees may be established where the Board determines that they
will provide expertise and enable it to deliver effective governance and manage risk.
 The Board must establish a formal and transparent arrangement for considering how
the organisation ensures financial viability, maintains a sound system of internal
controls, manages risk and maintains an appropriate relationship with its auditors.
 There must be clear working arrangements between the Board and the Chief
Executive and clear delegation of authority.
 Organisations must maintain, and be seen to maintain, the highest ethical standards
of probity and conduct. Boards must operate in an open and transparent manner,
having dialogue with and accountability to tenants and other key stakeholders.
One Manchester Limited and its subsidiaries comply with the National Housing Federation
Code of Governance (2015) in full.

By order of the Board

Jane Rothery
Company Secretary
23 September 2020
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The board members are responsible for preparing the report of the Board and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Co-operative and Community Benefit Society and social housing legislation require board
members to prepare financial statements for each financial year for the group and
association in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). The directors must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the association and of the surplus or deficit of the group and association
for that period.
In preparing these financial statements, the board members are required to:
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of
Recommended Practice for social housing providers (issued September 2018) have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and
 Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the association will continue in business.
The board members are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the association’s transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the association and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Co-operative and Communities Society Act
2014, the Co-operative and Community benefit Societies (Group Accounts) Regulation 1969,
the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered
Providers of Social Housing 2019. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the association and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the report of the Board is prepared in accordance
with the Statement of Recommended Practice for social housing providers (issued
September 2018).
Financial statements are published on the Group’s website in accordance with legislation in
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and determination of financial statements,
which may vary from legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the
Group’s website is the responsibility of board members. The board members’ responsibility
also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial statements contained therein.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ONE MANCHESTER LIMITED FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of One Manchester Limited (“the Association”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the
consolidated and Association statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and
Association statement of financial position, the consolidated and Association statement of
changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
In our opinion, the financial statements:




give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Association’s affairs
as at 31 March 2020 and of the Group’s and the Association’s results for the year
then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Co-operative and Community
Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies
(Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the
Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs
(UK)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and Association in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including
the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs
(UK) require us to report to you where:



the board members use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is not appropriate; or
the board members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s or the
Association’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Other information
The board is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information, and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where we are required by the
Co-operative or Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 or the Housing and Regeneration Act
2008 to report to you if, in our opinion:






the information given in the Report of the Board for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is not consistent with the financial statements;
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Association; or
a satisfactory system of control has not been maintained over transactions; or
the parent Association financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Responsibilities of the board
As explained more fully in the board members responsibilities statement set out on page
58, the board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the board
members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the board is responsible for assessing the Group and
the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the board
either intend to liquidate the Group or the Association or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located
on
the
Financial
Reporting
Council’s
website
at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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Use of our report
This report is made solely to the members of the Association, as a body, in accordance with
in accordance with the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Association’s members those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Association and the members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

BDO LLP
Statutory Auditor
3 Hardman Street
Manchester
23rd September 2020
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered
number OC305127).
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GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Note

2020
£ ‘000

2019
£ ‘000

Turnover: continuing activities

3

60,268

57,613

Operating costs

3

(45,983)

(40,644)

Surplus on the disposal of housing properties

6

4,266

6,338

Operating surplus: continuing activities

3,5

18,551

23,307

Interest receivable and other income
Interest payable and similar charges
Movement in fair value of investment properties

7
8
15

226
(7,949)
1,845

210
(7,691)
416

12,673

16,242

-

2

12,673

16,244

7,276

(4,770)

19,949

11,474

Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on surplus on ordinary activities

12

Surplus for the financial year
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gain / (loss) relating to pension scheme

11

Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 70 to 123 form part of these financial statements.
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Note

2020
£’000

2019
£ ‘000

Turnover: continuing activities

3

60,268

16,380

Operating costs

3

(45,945)

(16,354)

Surplus on the disposal of housing properties

6

4,266

-

Operating surplus: continuing activities

3,5

18,589

26

Interest receivable and other income
Interest payable and similar charges
Gift aid from subsidiary undertakings
Movement in fair value of investment properties

7
8
9
15

229
(8,161)
184
1,845

(19)
173
-

12,686

180

-

-

12,686

180

7,276

-

19,961

180

Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on surplus on ordinary activities

12

Surplus for the financial period and Total
comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gain relating to pension scheme

11

Total comprehensive income for the year
The notes on pages 70 to 123 form part of these financial statements.

The 2020 results reflect the post simplification position of the Group which occurred on 31 st
March 2019. Eastlands Homes Partnership (EHP) and City South Manchester Housing Trust
Limited (CSM) completed their transfer of engagements to One Manchester Limited (OML).
These Association results now show the consolidated position of the three registered
providers of social housing.

.
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GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 March 2020

Tangible fixed assets
Housing properties
Other tangible fixed assets
Investment properties
Fixed Asset Investments
Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Note

2020
£ ’000

2019
£ ‘000

13
14
15
19

208,366
9,695
39,019
50

190,650
10,036
35,161
50

257,130

235,897

1,421
5,431
40,038

2,013
4,366
11,264

46,890

17,643

(21,972)

(21,898)

24,918

(4,255)

282,048

231,642

17
18

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

20

Net current assets / (liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

21

(256,280)

(219,508)

Pension asset / (liability)

11

3,259

(3,056)

Net Asset

29,027

9,078

Capital and reserves
Income and expenditure reserve

29,027

9,078

Total reserves

29,027

9,078

The notes on pages 70 to 123 form part of these financial statements.
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 23
September 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Mole
Chair

Jane Rothery
Company Secretary
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 March 2020
Note

2020
£ ’000

2019
£ ‘000

13
14
15
19

208,578
9,695
39,280
-

69
-

257,553

69

1,421
4,193
39,025

1,696
1,070

44,639

2,766

(19,958)

(2,367)

24,681

399

282,234

468

(256,280)
50
3,259

-

Net asset

29,263

468

Capital and reserves
Income and expenditure reserve

29,263

468

Total reserves

29,263

468

Tangible fixed assets
Housing properties
Other tangible fixed assets
Investment properties
Fixed Asset Investments
Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

17
18

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

20

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Intercompany Loan
Pension asset

21
11

The notes on pages 70 to 123 form part of these financial statements.
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 23
September 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Mole
Chair

Jane Rothery
Company Secretary
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ONE MANCHESTER LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2020

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
2020

Income &
Expenditure
Reserve
£ ‘000

Balance at 1 April 2019

9,078

Surplus for the year

12,673
21,751

Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension schemes

7,276

Other comprehensive income for the year

7,276

Balance at 31 March 2020

29,027

2019

Income &
Expenditure
Reserve
£ ‘000

Balance at 1 April 2018

(2,396)

Surplus for the year

16,244
13,848

Initial recognition of DB Scheme liability
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension schemes

(1,614)
(3,156)

Other comprehensive income for the year

(4,770)

Balance at 31 March 2019

9,078

The notes on pages 70 to 123 form part of these financial statements.
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ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
2020

Income &
Expenditure
Reserve
£ ‘000

Balance at 1 April 2019

468

Surplus for the year
Reserves recognised on Group Simplification (note 1, Page 67)

12,686
8,833
21,987

Actuarial gain on defined pension schemes

7,276

Other comprehensive income for the year

7,276

Balance at 31 March 2020

29,263

2019

Income &
Expenditure
Reserve
£ ‘000

Balance at 1 April 2018

288

Surplus for the year

180

Other comprehensive income for the period

-

Balance at 31 March 2019

468

The notes on pages 70 to 123 form part of these financial statements.

.
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 March 2020
2020
£ ‘000
12,673

2019
£ ‘000
16,244

6,477
1,205
(3,831)

6,177
1,246
(3,778)

281
(4,266)
592
(1,032)
766
(107)
7,830
(1,845)

(1,086)
(6,338)
371
870
2,039
(35)
7,515
(416)

Cash from operations

18,743

22,809

Corporation Tax paid

-

(2)

18,743

22,807

Cash flows from investing activities
Net proceeds from sales of fixed asset properties
Improvement Programme
Construction of Housing properties
Cash flow for fixed asset investments
Purchase of other fixed assets
Social Housing Grants received
Interest received

4,057
(4,615)
(22,620)
(867)
10,348
107

6,068
(7,349)
(22,396)
(50)
(1,163)
8,294
35

Net cash used in investing activities

(13,590)

(16,561)

Cash from financing activities
Interest paid
Loans repaid
Loans received

(8,423)
(17,956)
50,000

(7,151)
(5,293)
7,500

Net cash outflow from financing activities

23,621

(4,944)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year

28,774

1,302

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

11,264

9,962

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

40,038

11,264

Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of Fixed Assets – Housing properties
Depreciation of Fixed Assets – Other
Grant amortisation
Difference between defined benefit employer
contributions and costs shown in income statement
Surplus on disposal of fixed assets
Decrease in stock
(Increase) / Decrease in debtors
Increase in creditors
Interest received
Interest payable
Movement on fair value of investment property

Net cash generated from operating activities
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Year ended 31 March 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Legal status

One Manchester Limited was registered as a Co-operative and Community Benefit Society
on 6th October 2014 and is registered with the Regulator of Social Housing as a Registered
Provider.
On 1 April 2015, Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited and City South Manchester Housing
Trust Limited combined to form One Manchester Housing Group. There is equal
representation of both parties within the new management structure. As a public benefit
entity combination in which the rights of the controlling parties of the combined entity
remain unchanged relative to other controlling parties the transaction has been accounted
for following the principles of merger accounting as set out in FRS 102 section 34.
On 1 April 2019 Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited and City South Manchester Housing
Trust Limited formally completed a transfer of engagements of all the trade, assets and
liabilities to One Manchester Limited (parent company of the Associations). The Associations
have ceased trading and as required by FRS 102, the directors have prepared the financial
statements on the basis that the Associations are no longer a going concern. No material
adjustments arose as a result of ceasing to apply the going concern basis. All assets and
liabilities were transferred to One Manchester Limited at their carrying amounts.
2.

Accounting policies

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in
accordance with applicable law and UK accounting standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) which for One Manchester includes the Co-operative and
Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 (and related group accounts regulations), the
Housing and Regeneration Act 2008, FRS 102 “the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland”, the Statement of Recommended Practice
(SORP) for Registered Social Housing Providers 2018, “Accounting by registered social
housing providers” and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social
Housing 2019.
Going Concern
The Group’s business activities, its current financial position and factors likely to affect its
future development are set out within the Strategic Report. The Group has in place longterm debt facilities that provide adequate resources to finance committed reinvestment and
development programmes, along with the Group’s day to day operations. The Group also
has a long-term business plan that shows that it is able to service these debt facilities whilst
continuing to comply with lenders’ covenants.
The impact of the COVID-19 outbreak and the Government’s decision on social distancing
have had a significant effect on our activity during the first quarter of 2020/21. However,
extensive work has been undertaken to revise the financial budget for the remainder of the
year, including the formation of an efficiency plan which, combined with other measures
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Going Concern (continued)
sees the budgeted surplus on ordinary activities improve by just over £2m. This has been
approved by the Senior Management Team and is due to be presented to Board for
approval this September.
Robust stress testing has been undertaken and approved by the Board in May-June 2020
with respect to the long-term financial business plan and Board have considered a wide
range of scenarios and mitigations to manage risk. A further iteration of the Business Plan
and associated stress testing will be presented to Board for approval this September.
We have also introduced processes to monitor cash collection on a weekly basis. This, in
conjunction with cash flow forecasting enables us to review financial stability as matters
progress.
Given the strength of the balance sheet and availability and liquidity of undrawn loan
facilities, the Board believe that, while uncertainty exists, this does not pose a material
uncertainty that would cast doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
Board, therefore, consider it appropriate for the accounts to be prepared on a going
concern basis.
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires Group management to exercise
judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies.
Transfer of Engagements
On 31st March 2019, in order to simplify group structure Eastlands Homes Partnership (EHP)
and City South Manchester Housing Trust Litd (CSM) completed their transfer of
engagements to One Manchester Limited (OML). This consolidated the three providers of
social housing into a single entity (the ‘Association’). Further detail is contained in Note 32.
Parent company disclosure exemptions
In preparing the separate financial statements of the parent company, advantage has been
taken of the following disclosure exemptions available in FRS 102:
 Only one reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end
of the period has been presented as the reconciliations for the group and the parent
company would be identical;
 No cash flow statement has been presented for the parent company;
 Disclosures in respect of the parent company’s financial instruments have not been
presented as equivalent disclosures have been provided in respect of the group as a
whole; and
 No disclosure has been given for the aggregate remuneration of the key management
personnel of the parent company, as their remuneration is included in the totals for
the group as a whole.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements present the results of One Manchester and its
subsidiaries ("the Group") as if they formed a single entity. Intercompany transactions and
balances between group companies are therefore eliminated in full.
The accounts of the following companies are included in the consolidation:
 One Manchester Limited
 Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited (Engagements transferred to One Manchester
Limited as at 31st March 2019)
 City South Manchester Housing Trust Limited (Engagements transferred to One
Manchester Limited as at 31st March 2019)
 One Manchester Developments (Formerly City South Manchester Developments
Limited)
 One Manchester Treasury Limited
Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited and City South Manchester Housing Trust Limited
were incorporated under the Companies Act 2006 and Charities Act 2011 and are registered
with the Homes England as Registered Providers.
Following a Group Simplification exercise that took place 1st April 2019 Eastlands Homes
Partnership Limited and City South Manchester Housing Trust Limited formally completed a
transfer of engagements of all the trade, assets and liabilities to One Manchester Limited
(parent company of the Associations):
One Manchester Developments Limited is a property development business that provides
build project management services to the Group. As part of the group simplification exercise
carried out in Q1 2019, the Board has also approved a change in name of City South
Manchester Developments Limited to One Manchester Developments, actioned by
Companies House on 13th June 2019.
One Manchester Treasury Limited is an investment company providing treasury services to
One Manchester Ltd.
Eastlands Regeneration Company Limited was dormant during the current financial year. It
has never traded and was formally dissolved on the 31st July 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
One Manchester Property Limited was incorporated on 26 May 2018 as a wholly owned
subsidiary of One Manchester Limited with general commercial objects. It was established in
order to enable potential non-charitable, non-core activity to be undertaken, which is likely
to include property development for sale, joint venture arrangements and providing
property management services to third parties.
One Manchester Limited has the right to appoint members to the Board of the subsidiaries
and thereby exercises control over them. One Manchester Limited is the ultimate parent
undertaking.
Income
Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The group
generates the following material income streams:
 Rental income receivable (after deducting lost rent from void properties available for
letting);
 Revenue grants;
 Amortisation of Social Housing Grant and Gap funding grant; and
 Proceeds from the sale of land and property, including first tranche sale of shared
ownership properties.
Rental income is recognised from the point when properties under development reach
practical completion and are formally let. Revenue Grants are receivable when the
conditions for receipt of agreed grant funding have been met. Charges for support services
funded under Supporting People are recognised as they fall due under the contractual
arrangements with Administering Authorities. Income from first tranche sales of shared
ownership property and sales of properties built for sale is recognised at the point of legal
completion of the sale.
Service charges
The Group adopts the variable method for calculating and charging service charges to its
tenants and leaseholders. Expenditure is recorded when a service is provided and charged
to the relevant service charge account or to a sinking fund. Income is recorded based on the
estimated amounts chargeable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Schemes managed by agents
Income is shown as rent receivable and management fees payable to agents are included in
operating costs.
Should the Group carry the financial risk on property managed by agents, all the income and
expenditure arising from the property during the year will be included in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Should an agency carry the financial risk, then the Statement of
Comprehensive Income will include only that income and expenditure that relates solely to
the Group.
Pension costs
Contributions to the Group's defined contribution pension scheme are charged to the
Income Statement in the year in which they become payable.
The Group participates in two funded defined benefit schemes, the Social Housing Pension
Scheme (SHPS) and the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF).
GMPF
The difference between the fair value of the assets held in the group's defined benefit
pension scheme and the scheme's liabilities measured on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method are recognised in the group's statement of financial position as a
pension asset or liability as appropriate. The carrying value of any resulting pension scheme
asset is restricted to the extent that the group is able to recover the surplus either through
reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the scheme.
SHPS
For financial years ending on or before 28 February 2019, it has not been possible for the
company to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the Scheme as a
defined benefit scheme, therefore the company has accounted for the Scheme as a defined
contribution scheme.
For financial years ending on or after 31 March 2019, it has been possible to obtain
sufficient information to enable the company to account for the scheme as a defined benefit
scheme, similar to the other defined benefit scheme (LGPS) we participate in.
The Scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. The company is therefore
potentially liable for other participating employers' obligations if those employers are
unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the Scheme.
Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the Scheme deficit on an
annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Holiday pay accrual
A liability is recognised to the extent of any unused holiday pay entitlement that has accrued
at the Statement of Financial Position date and carried forward to future periods. This is
measured at the undiscounted salary cost of the future holiday entitlement so accrued at
the Statement of Financial Position date.
Taxation
The charge for taxation for the year is based on the surpluses arising from non-charitable
activities that are liable to tax.
Deferred taxation is provided in full on timing differences which result in an obligation at the
Statement of Financial Position date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future
date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise, based on current tax rates and law.
Timing differences arise from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation
computations in periods different from those in which they are included in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as more
likely than not that they will be recovered. Deferred tax balances are not discounted.
Value added tax
The majority of the Group’s income, being rents, is exempt for VAT purposes and this gives
rise to a partial exemption calculation for VAT recovery. Expenditure is therefore primarily
recorded inclusive of VAT with the small proportion that can be recovered credited to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The balance of VAT payable or recoverable at the
year end is included as a current liability or asset.
Finance costs
Finance costs are charged to Income Statement over the term of the debt using the effective
interest rate method so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying
amount. Issue costs are initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated
capital instrument and amortised over the period of the related loan.
Tangible fixed assets - Social housing properties
Housing properties are valued under the historical cost basis and stated at cost less
depreciation and impairment (where applicable). The cost of housing land and property
represents their purchase price and any directly attributable costs of acquisition which may
include an appropriate amount for staff costs and other costs of managing development.

75

ONE MANCHESTER LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Tangible fixed assets - Social housing properties (continued)
Directly attributable costs of acquisition includes capitalised interest calculated, on a
proportional basis, using finance costs on borrowing which has been drawn in order to
finance the relevant construction or acquisition. Where housing properties are in the course
of construction, finance costs are only capitalised where construction is on-going and has
not been interrupted or terminated.
Expenditure on major refurbishment to properties is capitalised where the works increase
the net rental stream over the life of the property. An increase in the net rental stream may
arise through an increase in the net rental income, a reduction in future maintenance costs,
or a subsequent extension in the life of the property. All other repair and replacement
expenditure is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Housing properties in the course of construction, excluding the estimated cost of the
element of shared ownership properties expected to be sold in first tranche, are included in
Tangible fixed assets – housing properties and held at cost less any impairment, and are
transferred to completed properties when ready for letting.
Expenditure on shared ownership properties are split proportionately between current and
fixed assets based on the elements relating to expected first tranche sales. The first tranche
proportion is classified as a current asset and related sales proceeds included in turnover
and the remaining element is classed as a fixed asset and included in housing properties at
cost, less any provisions needed for depreciation or impairment.
Gains and losses on disposal of social housing property are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other operating income’ in
the statement of comprehensive income.
Depreciation of housing property
Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until they are completed and ready
for use to ensure that they are depreciated only in periods in which economic benefits are
expected to be consumed.
Freehold land is not depreciated. Housing properties are split between the structure and the
major components that require periodic replacement. The costs of replacement or
restoration of these components are capitalised and depreciated over the determined
average useful economic life.
The cost of all other housing property (net of accumulated depreciation to date and
impairment, where applicable) and components is depreciated over the useful economic
lives of the assets on the following basis:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Depreciation of housing property (continued)
Description

Economic useful life (years)

Structure
Kitchen
Bathroom
Roofs
Doors
Boiler
Rewiring
Windows
Central Heating
Lifts
Over cladding
Fire Sprinklers

100
20
40
70
40
15
40
40
40
30
60
25

Leasehold properties are depreciated over the length of the lease except where the
expected useful economic life of properties is shorter than the lease; when the lease and
building elements are depreciated separately over their expected useful economic lives.
Gap funding grant
The Group is partly funded through Gap Funding Grant from the Regulator of Social Housing
(RSH). This grant is provided to meet the Decent Homes Standard, regenerate the area and
improve the environment. Such funding is accounted for by reference to the accounting
treatment of the grant eligible costs so funded. The funding of revenue costs is regarded as
revenue income with Turnover, and the funding of capitalised additions to Housing
Properties is carried as deferred income in the Statement of Financial Position and released
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis over the useful economic
lives of the assets for which it was received.
Government grants
Grants received in relation to assets that are presented at historic cost have been accounted
for using the accrual model set out in FRS 102 and the Housing SORP 2018. Grant is carried
as deferred income in the statement of financial position and released to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis over the useful economic lives of the asset for
which it was received. In accordance with Housing SORP 2018, the useful economic life of
the housing property structure has been selected.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Government grants (continued)
Where Social Housing Grant (SHG) funded property is sold, the grant becomes recyclable
and is transferred to a recycled capital grant fund until it is reinvested in a replacement
property. If there is no requirement to recycle or repay the grant on disposal of the assets
any unamortised grant remaining within creditors is released and recognised as income
within the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Grants relating to revenue are recognised in Income Statement over the same period as the
expenditure to which they relate once performance related conditions have been met.
Grants due from government organisations or received in advance are included as current
assets or liabilities.
Recycled capital grant fund
On the occurrence of certain relevant events, primarily the sale of dwellings, Homes England
can direct the Group to recycle capital grants or to make repayments of the recoverable
amount. The Group adopts a policy of recycling, for which a separate fund is maintained. If
unused within a three-year period, it will be repayable to the Homes England with interest.
Any unused recycled capital grant held within the recycled capital grant fund, which it is
anticipated will not be used within one year is disclosed in the Statement of Financial
Position under "creditors due after more than one year". The remainder is disclosed under
"creditors due within one year".
Disposal proceeds fund
Receipts from Right to Acquire (RTA) sales are required to be retained in a ring-fenced fund
that can only be used for providing replacement housing. The sales receipts less eligible
expenses are credited to the Disposal Proceeds Fund. Any sales receipts less eligible
expenses held within the disposal proceeds fund, which it is anticipated will not be used
within one year is disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position under "creditors due after
more than one year". The remainder is disclosed under "creditors due within one year".
Investment properties
Investment properties consist of commercial properties and other properties not held for
social benefit or for use in the business. Investment properties, including assets in the
course of construction, are measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently carried
at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is determined annually by external valuers
and derived from the current market rents and investment property yields for comparable
real estate, adjusted if necessary for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. No depreciation is provided. Changes in fair value are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of fixed assets
The housing property portfolio for the Group is assessed for indicators of impairment at
each accounting date. Where indicators are identified then a detailed assessment is
undertaken to compare the carrying amount of assets or cash generating units for which
impairment is indicated to their recoverable amounts. An option appraisal is carried out to
determine the option that produces the highest net realisable value. Valuations on rental
return or potential sale proceeds are obtained and used to inform the options. The Group
looks at the net realisable value, under the options available, when considering the
recoverable amount for the purposes of impairment assessment. The recoverable amount is
taken to be the higher of the fair value less costs to sell or value in use of an asset or cash
generating unit. The assessment of value in use may involve considerations of the service
potential of the assets or cash generating units concerned or the present value of future
cash flows to be derived from them appropriately adjusted to account for any restrictions
on their use.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Where the recoverable amount of an
asset or cash generating unit is lower than its carrying value an impairment is recorded
through a charge to Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Tangible fixed assets – Other
Other tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.
The group adds to the carrying amount of an item of fixed assets the cost of replacing part
of such an item when that cost is incurred if the replacement part is expected to provide
incremental future benefits to the group. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. Repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Comprehensive
Income during the period in which they are incurred.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is charged so as to allocate the cost of
assets less their residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives range as follows:
Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets (continued)
Description

Economic useful life (years)

Freehold offices
Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Computers & applications
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles

40
4
3
4
4

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and
adjusted prospectively if appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since
the last reporting date.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within ‘other operating income’ in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Stock and properties held for sale
Stock is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises materials, direct
labour and direct development overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated sales
proceeds after allowing for all further costs to completion and selling costs.
Properties developed for outright sale are included in current assets as they are intended to
be sold, at the lower of cost or estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell.
At each reporting date, stock and properties held for sale are assessed for impairment. If
there is evidence of impairment, the carrying value is reduced to its selling price less costs to
complete and sell. The impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Debtors and creditors
Debtors and creditors, with no stated interest rate, receivable or payable within one year
are recorded at transaction price. Any losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in other operating expenses.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Recoverable amount of rental and other trade receivables
The Group estimates the recoverable value of rental and other receivables and impairs the
debtor by appropriate amounts. When assessing the amount to impair it reviews the age
profile of the debt, historical collection rates and the class of debt.
Rent and service charge agreements
The Group has made arrangement with individuals and households for arrears payments of
rent and service charges. These arrangements are effectively loans granted at nil interest
rate.
Loans, investments and short-term deposits
All loans, investments and short-term deposits held by the Group are classified as basic
financial instruments in accordance with FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at
the transaction price less any transaction costs (historical cost), FRS 102 requires that basic
financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Loans and investments
that are payable or receivable within one year are not discounted.
Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial
instrument's contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument's legal form.
Leased assets
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Leased assets: Lessor
Where assets are leased to a third party analysis of the lease is undertaken to determine if
the lease gives rights approximating to ownership of the asset to the lessee. The group
accounts for lessor transaction based on this analysis:
 Where rights are granted to the lessee approximating to ownership (finance leases),
the assets are treated as if they have been sold outright.
 Where rights are not granted to the lessee approximating to ownership (operating
leases), their annual rentals are credited to Statement of Comprehensive Income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is recognised for a possible obligation, for which it is not yet confirmed
that a present obligation exists that could lead to an outflow of resources; or for a present
obligation that does not meet the definitions of a provision or a liability as it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or when a sufficiently
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
A contingent liability exists on grant repayment that is dependent on the disposal of related
property.
Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing these financial statements, the following judgements have had the most
significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.
 Indicators of impairment of the Group’s tangible and intangible assets
Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic
viability and expected future financial performance of the asset and where it is a
component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability and expected future
performance of that unit. The Group have considered the measurement basis to
determine the recoverable amount of assets where there are indicators of impairment
based on EUV-SH or depreciated replacement cost. The members have also
considered impairment based on their assumptions to define cash generating units.
 Development expenditure
The anticipated costs to complete on a development scheme include anticipated
construction cost, effective rate of interest on loans during the construction period,
legal costs and other costs. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s
judgement that the development scheme is confirmed, usually when Board approval
has taken place including access to the appropriate funding. In determining whether a
project is likely to cease, management monitors the development and considers if
changes have occurred that result in impairment.
 Pension
The critical underlying assumptions in relation to the estimate of the pension defined
benefit scheme obligation include standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate
and anticipated future salary increases. Variations in these assumptions have the
ability to significantly influence the value of the liability or asset recorded and annual
defined benefit expense.
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2.

Accounting Policies (continued)
 Leases
Whether leases entered into by the Group are operating lease or finance leases
depends on an assessment of whether the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a lease-by-lease basis.
 Categorisation of housing properties
The Group has undertaken a detailed review of the intended use of all housing
properties. In determining the intended use, the Group has considered if the asset is
held for social benefit or to earn commercial rentals. The Group has determined that
market rented properties are investment properties.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty:
 Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are depreciated over their
useful economic lives taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The
actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary
depending on a number of factors.
For housing property assets, the assets are broken down into components based on
assessment of the properties. Individual useful economic lives are assigned to these
components.
 Rental and other trade receivables (debtors)
The estimate for receivables relates to the recoverability of the balances outstanding
at the year-end. A review is performed on an individual debtor basis to consider
whether each debt is recoverable.
 Fair value of investment properties
The group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The group engaged
independent valuation specialists to determine the fair value at the Statement of
Financial position date. The valuer used a valuation technique based on a discounted
cash flow model. The determined fair value of the investment property is the most
sensitive to the estimated yield as well as the long-term vacancy rate. The key
assumptions used to determine the fair value of investment property are further
explained in note 14 of the financial statements.
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3.

Turnover, operating costs and operating surplus

Group

Social housing lettings
Other social housing activities
Supporting people
First tranche shared ownership sales
Development costs not capitalised

Non-social housing activities
Place, Skills, Heath & Wellbeing
Market rent lettings
Other

Year ended 31 March 2020
Operating
Operating
costs
surplus/
(deficit)
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
(39,230)
13,870

Turnover

Cost of
Sales

£ ‘000
53,100

£ ‘000

3,141
-

(2,804)
-

(1,163)

337
(1,163)

76
2,244
-

(1,835)
-

(76)
(434)

409
(434)

3,141

(2,804)

(1,163)

(826)

2,320

(1,835)

(510)

(25)

49
3,028
950

-

(1,747)
(643)
(396)

(1,698)
2,385
554

131
1,811
1,032

-

(1,939)
(940)
(432)

(1,808)
871
600

4,027

-

(2,786)

1,241

2,974

-

(3,311)

(337)

60,268

(2,804)

(43,179)

14,285

57,613

(1,835)

(38,809)

16,969

Surplus: Disposal of fixed asset
housing property (note 6)

Turnover

Year ended 31 March 2019
Cost of Operating
Operating
Sales
costs
surplus/
(deficit)
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
(34,988)
17,331

£ ‘000
52,319

4,266

6,338

18,551

23,307

Operating costs as per the SOCI (Page 63) includes operating costs from Note 3 £43,179k and 1st tranche shared ownership costs of sales of £2,804k totalling £45,983k.
Operating surplus as per the SOCI (Page 63) includes surplus on disposal of FA £4,266k.
1.
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3.

Turnover, operating costs and operating surplus

Association

Social housing lettings
Other social housing activities
Supporting people
First tranche shared ownership sales
Development costs not capitalised

Non-social housing activities
Place, Skills, Heath & Wellbeing
Market rent lettings
Other
Management recharges - Group

Year ended 31 March 2020
Operating
Operating
costs
surplus/
(deficit)
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
(39,192)
13,908

Turnover

Cost of
Sales

£ ‘000
53,100

£ ‘000

3,141
-

(2,804)
-

(1,163)

337
(1,163)

-

3,141

(2,804)

(1,163)

(826)

9

49
3,028
950
-

-

(1,747)
(643)
(396)
-

(1,698)
2,385
554
-

16,371

-

4,027

-

(2,786)

1,241

60,268

(2,804)

(43,141)

14,323

Surplus: Disposal of fixed asset
housing property (note 6)

4,266
18,589
85

Turnover

Year ended 31 March 2019
Cost of Operating
Operating
Sales
costs
surplus/
(deficit)
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
(1)
8

£ ‘000
9

-

-

-

(1)

8

-

(16,353)

18

16,371

-

(16,353)

18

16,380

-

(16,354)
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3.

Turnover, operating costs and operating surplus (continued)

Particulars of income and expenditure from social housing lettings
Group – Year ended 31 March 2020
General needs housing
Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges
Service charge income
Capital grant amortisation

2020
£ ‘000
47,508
1,761
3,831

2019
£ ‘000
47,153
1,388
3,778

Net general needs housing related income

53,100

52,319

Management
Services
Routine maintenance
Planned maintenance
Major repairs expenditure
Major repairs expenditure – Cladding & Fire Safety
Bad debts
Depreciation of housing properties
Depreciation of other assets

14,741
3,003
7,882
1,971
3,164
423
364
6,477
1,205

13,409
2,411
6,787
1,632
2,415
536
375
6,177
1,246

Operating costs on social housing lettings

39,230

34,988

Operating surplus on social housing lettings

13,870

17,331

430

298

Void losses

86

ONE MANCHESTER LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4.

Accommodation in management

At the end of the year, units managed for each class of accommodation were as follows:
Group
Social housing
General housing (social rents)
Low Cost home ownership – shared ownership

Non social housing
Market rent (investment properties)

Association
Social housing
General housing (social rents)
Low Cost home ownership – shared ownership

Non social housing
Market rent (investment properties)

5.

2019
No.

Gains
No.

Losses
No.

2020
No.

11,750
44
11,794

206
44
250

(106)
(106)

11,850
88
11,938

282

23

1

306

2019
No.

Gains
No.

Losses
No.

2020
No.

11,750
44
11,794

206
44
250

(106)
(106)

11,850
88
11,938

282

23

1

306

Operating surplus

This is arrived at after charging:

Group

Depreciation of housing properties
Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets
Operating lease rentals:
- vehicles, office equipment & computers
- land & buildings
Auditor’s remuneration (including VAT)
- for external audit services
- for non-audit services (tax advisory, other)
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Association

2020
£’000
6,477
1,205

2019
£’000
6,177
1,246

2020
£’000
6,477
1,205

2019
£’000
1
-

449
22

436
323

449
22

-

40
-

41
-

10
-

10
-

ONE MANCHESTER LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6.

Surplus on disposal of fixed assets – housing properties

Disposal proceeds
Disposal proceeds attributable to MCC
Carrying value of fixed assets
Grant released to income on disposal
Transfer to Disposal Proceeds Fund

2020
£’000
7,637
(2,785)
(1,718)
1,132
-

Group
2019
£’000
10,457
(3,542)
(1,529)
952
-

4,266

6,338

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
7,637
(2,785)
(1,718)
1,132
4,266

-

The surplus on disposal of fixed assets has been presented as part of the operating surplus.
7.

Interest receivable and other income

Interest receivable and bank deposits
Net pension fund interest (note 11)

8.

2020
£’000
106
120

Group
2019
£’000
35
175

226

210

2020
£’000
7,707
(665)
11
670
154
72

Group
2019
£’000
7,828
(558)
41
218
4
88
70

7,949

7,691

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
109
120
229

-

Interest payable and similar charges

Loans and bank overdrafts
Capitalised Interest
Bank charges
Amortisation of Financing Costs
Interest on Disposal Proceeds Fund
Net pension fund interest (note 11)
Interest on SHPS liability (note 11)

.
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Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
8,105
(665)
11
19
484
154
72
8,161
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9.

Gift aid

Gift aid received from subsidiary undertakings

2020
£’000
-

Group
2019
£’000
-

-

-

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
184
173
184

173

A gift aid payment of £105,826 (2019: £66,923) was received on 20 December 2019 in
respect of the period ended 31 March 2019 from One Manchester Developments Limited.
A gift aid payment of £77,846 (2019: £106,246) was received on 21 December 2018 in
respect of the period ended 31 March 2019 from One Manchester Treasury Limited.

10.

Group & Association Employees, Board members and executive directors

All employees of One Manchester Group are employed on joint contracts of employment
for all companies within the Group and at any time may be engaged on work for any of the
Groups companies.
Employees
Average monthly number of employees expressed in full time
equivalents:

2020

2019

Administration
Neighbourhood Services
Property Services

No.
74
149
175

No.
72
147
165

Total Full time equivalents based on a 35 hour working week:

398

384

2020
£ ‘000
12,764
1,187
3,045

2019
£ ‘000
12,152
1,161
2,893

16,996

16,206

Employee costs:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
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10.

Group & Association Employees, Board members and executive directors
(continued)

Salary bandings for all Employees (including Directors) earning over £60,000 as at the end of
March 2020 was as follows:
Bands
£60,000-£69,999

2020
8

2019
6

£70,000-£79,999

6

6

£80,000-£89,999

-

-

£90,000-£99,999

-

-

£100,000-£109,999

1

2

£110,000-£119,999

2

1

£130,000-£139,999

-

-

£150,000-£159,999

1

1

18

16

2020
£ ‘000

2019
£ ‘000

608

516

85

88

160*

154

Board members and executive directors

Aggregate remuneration paid to Directors (including Pension
contributions)
Aggregate remuneration paid to Board members
Emoluments paid to the highest paid Director, Chief Executive
excluding pension contributions
(*relates to former CE)

The previous Chief Executive left One Manchester in January 2020 and was a member of the
Local Government – Greater Manchester Pension Fund. The current Chief Executive that
joined in January 2020 is a member of the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS). They were
both an ordinary member of their respective pension schemes and no enhanced or special
terms apply. The Company does not make any further contribution to an individual pension
arrangement for the Chief Executive.
Directors comprise the Chief Executive and Executive Directors as listed within the Company
Information section at the front of the financial statements.
These individuals are those considered by the group to be the key management personnel.
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10. Group & Association Employees, Board members and executive directors (continued)
Board members

Nadim Ahmad
Graham Aitken
John Atkins
Charles Geoffrey Bean
Ber Bosveld (for Woodfield
Management BV)
David Dennehy
Thomas Fenton
Alison Gordon
John Hughes (Vice Chair)
Stephen Kinsey
Lyndsey McDonald
Steven Mole (Chair)
Dr. Slawomir Pawlik
Cllr Suzanne Richards
Angela Robinson
Cllr Emily Rowles (Co-optee)

Remuneration
£

6,124
6,124
7,239
4,286
5,309

One
Manchester
Board

X
X

Eastlands
Homes
Partnership*

City South
Manchester
Housing Trust*

Audit & Risk
Committee

Place
Committee

X
X

X

X

X
X

Appointed 24/7/19

Growth
Committee

Remuneration
& Governance
Committee

X
X
Appointed
24/7/19

Resigned 17/6/19
Resigned 17/6/19
2,405
6,124
X
6,124
X
X
8,909
X
X
Resigned 24/7/19
Resigned 24/7/19
3,010
6,124
X
X
15,034
X
6,124
X
X
X
7,239
X
X
X
*Societies cancelled January 2020

Resigned 17/6/19

X
X
Resigned 24/7/19

Resigned 17/6/19

X
X

Resigned 17/6/19

X
X
X

Resigned 24/7/19

X
X

X

X
X
X

X
X
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11.

Pensions - Group

Social Housing Pension Scheme
The group participates in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the Scheme), a multiemployer scheme which provides benefits to some 500 non-associated employers. The
Scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.
The Scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004, which
came into force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the
Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting
Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in
the UK.
The last triennial valuation of the scheme for funding purposes was carried out as at 30
September 2017. This valuation revealed a deficit of £1,522m. A Recovery Plan has been put
in place with the aim of removing this deficit by 30 September 2026.
The next valuation has an effective date of 30 September 2020.
The Scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore, the company is
potentially liable for other participating employers' obligations if those employers are
unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the Scheme.
Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the Scheme deficit on an
annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the Scheme.
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11.

Pensions – Group (Continued)

Social Housing Pension Scheme
Period Ended 31 March 2020

Assets Obligations
£’000
£’000

Fair Value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Opening position at 31 March 2019
Service costs
Current service cost
Expenses
Past service costs (including curtailments)
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit
or (Loss)
Cashflows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Scheme experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2020

93

8,977
8,977

12,087
12,087

Net (liability)
/ asset
£’000
8,977
(12,087)
(3,110)

-

371
8

(371)
(8)

-

379

(379)

220
220

292
292

220
(292)
(72)

575
(130)
445

(130)
(130)

575
575

32

(100)
(1,763)
362

100
1,763
(330)

32

(1,501)

1,533

9,674
9,674

11,127
11,127

9,674
(11,127)
(1,453)
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11.

Pensions – Group (Continued)

Social Housing Pension Scheme
Period Ended 31 March 2019

Assets Obligations
£’000
£’000

Fair Value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Departicipation debt triggered
Opening position at 31 March 2018
Service costs
Current service cost
Expenses
Past service costs (including curtailments)
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit
or (Loss)
Cash flows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Scheme experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2019

94

8,191
8,191

10,921
10,921

Net (liability)
/ asset
£’000
8,191
(10,921)
(2,730)

-

388
10
398

(388)
(10)
(398)

217
217
217

287
287
685

217
(287)
(70)
(468)

10
454
(140)
324

10
(140)
(130)

454
454

245
-

924
30
(343)
-

(924)
(30)
588
-

245

611

(366)

8,977
8,977

12,087
12,087

8,977
(12,087)
(3,110)
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11.

Pensions – Group (Continued)

Social Housing Pension Scheme
Financial assumptions
31 March 31 March
2020
2019
% per
% per
annum
annum
2.33
2.39%
2.51
3.21%
1.51
2.21%
2.51
3.21%
75% of
75% of
Maximum Maximum
allowance allowance

Discount rate
Inflation (RPI)
Inflation (CPI)
Salary growth
Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement

Mortality assumptions
The post-retirement mortality assumptions adopted to value the benefit obligation at 31
March 2020 is based on the CMI_2017 model (2019: CMI_2017 model). The assumed life
expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

Retiring in 2020 / 2019
Males
Females
Retiring in 2040 / 2039
Males
Females
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2020
No. of years

2019
No. of years

21.5
23.3

21.8
23.5

22.9
24.5

23.2
24.7
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11.

Pensions – Group (Continued)

Social Housing Pension Scheme
Assets
31 March
2020
(£000s)
504
677
552
265
186
293
6
1,415
720
297
3,211
4
167
41
234
195
213
327
367
9,674

Absolute Return
Alternative Risk Premia
Corporate Bond Fund
Credit Relative Value
Distressed Opportunities
Emerging Markets Debt
Fund of Hedge Funds
Global Equity
Infrastructure
Insurance-Linked Securities
Liability Driven Investment
Liquid Credit
Long Lease Property
Net Current Assets
Opportunistic Illiquid Credit
Private Debt
Property
Risk Sharing
Secured Income
Total assets

31 March
2019
(£000s)
777
518
419
164
163
310
40
1,511
471
258
3,283
132
17
120
202
271
321
8,977

None of the fair values of the assets shown above includes any direct investments in the
employer’s own financial instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used
by, the employer.
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11.

Pensions – Group (Continued)

Social Housing Pension Scheme
Scheme assets and liabilities

2020
£ ‘000
9,674
(11,127)

2019
£ ‘000
8,977
(12,087)

(1,453)

(3,110)

2020
£ ‘000
371
8

2019
£ ‘000
388
10
-

379

398

220
(292)

217
(287)

(72)

(70)

Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions - liabilities
Other experiences gains/losses - liabilities
Return on net assets excluding amounts in net interest

2020
£ ‘000
100
1,763
(362)
32

2019
£ ‘000
(924)
(30)
343
245

Net actuarial movements in other comprehensive income

1,533

(366)

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Net defined benefit liability

Amounts charged/(credited) to income statement
Current service cost
Past service cost
Departicipation debt triggered
Amounts charged to operating costs
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost of scheme liabilities
Net interest charge / (credit)

Amounts charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income

Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF)
The GMPF is a multi-employer scheme, administered by Tameside Metropolitan Borough
Council (“TMBC”) under the regulations governing the Local Government Pension Scheme, a
defined benefit scheme.
The Group contributes to three schemes within the GMPF as detailed below:
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

GMPF Scheme 1 - (Eastlands Guaranteed Scheme)
Employees participating in this scheme are those, which transferred from Manchester City
Council (MCC) in 2003 with the transfer of housing stock to the Company at that time. MCC
has entered into an agreement with TMBC and the Company whereby the contributions
payable by the Company are set in relation to the current service cost only (being based on
contribution rates applied to MCC employees). In accordance with the provisions set out in
FRS 102, the scheme is treated as a defined contribution scheme as the Company’s
contributions are linked to those of another employer and the actuary has indicated that it
is not possible to allocate assets and liabilities to the Company’s staff on a consistent and
reliable basis given the degree of cross-subsidy that exists and the relative size of the
Company compared with other members of the scheme. The income statement charge for
the period represents the employer contributions payable.
The Company paid contributions at the rate of 19.1% during the accounting period. The
employers’ contribution to the scheme in the period amounted to £73,334 (2019: £81,452).
Member contributions vary between 5.8% and 6.8%. Future contribution rates will be set at
the same level as MCC.
GMPF Scheme 2 - (Eastland’s 2009 Transfer and New Starters)
Employees participating in this scheme are those that transferred from Manchester City
Council (MCC) on 30 March 2009 with the transfer of East Manchester housing stock to the
Company and those new starters between the 2003 transfer and the 2009 transfer. The
most recent formal actuarial valuation was completed as at 31 March 2019 by a qualified
independent actuary.
Expected contributions for the year 2020/21 are £268,000 (2019/20: £235,000).
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

GMPF Scheme 2 (Eastland’s 2009 Transfer and New Starters)
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets, Defined Benefit Obligation and Net (Liability)/Asset
for year ended 31 March 2020
Period Ended 31 March 2020

Assets Obligations
£’000
£’000

Fair Value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Opening position at 31 March 2019
Service costs
Current service cost
Past service costs (including curtailments)
Departicipation debt released
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit
or (Loss)
Cashflows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2020

46,082
46,082

40,893
40,893

Net (liability)
/ asset
£’000
46,082
(40,893)
5,189

-

589

(589)

-

-

(589)

1,101
1,101
1,101

981
981
1,570

1,101
(981)
120
(469)

89
220
(894)
46.598

89
(894)
41,658

220
4,940

-

(3,017)
(1,229)
(3,448)

3,017
1,229
3,448

(5,064)

-

(5,064)

(5,064)

(7,694)

2,630

41,534
41,534

33,964
33,964

41,534
(33,964)
7,570
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

GMPF Scheme 2 (Eastland’s 2009 Transfer and New Starters) (continued)
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets, Defined Benefit Obligation and Net (Liability)/Asset
for year ended 31 March 2019
Period Ended 31 March 2019

Assets Obligations
£’000
£’000

Fair Value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Departicipation debt triggered
Opening position at 31 March 2018
Service costs
Current service cost
Past service costs (including curtailments)
Departicipation debt released
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in Profit
or (Loss)
Cashflows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2019

43,401
43,401

36,764
36,764

Net (liability)
/ asset
£’000
43,401
(36,764)
6,637

-

525
478
1,003

(525)
(478)
(1,003)

1,164
1,164
1,164

995
995
1,998

1,164
(995)
169
(834)

89
230
(843)
44,041

89
(843)
38,008

230
6,033

2,041

2,885
-

2,041

2,885

(844)

46,082
46,082

40,893
40,893

46,082
(40,893)
5,189

100

(2,885)
2,041
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

GMPF Scheme 3 (City South Manchester Housing Trust Scheme)
Employees participating in this scheme are employees of City South Manchester Housing
Trust prior to the merger. The most recent formal actuarial valuation was completed as at
31 March 2019 by a qualified independent actuary.
Expected contributions for the year 2020/21 are £655,000 (2019/20: £810,000).
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets, Defined Benefit Obligation and Net Liability for year
ended 31 March 2020
Period Ended 31 March 2020

Assets
£’000

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Opening position at 31 March 2019
Service costs
Current service cost
Past service cost
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit
obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in profit
or (loss)
Cashflows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2020

38,515
38,515
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Obligations Net (liability)
£’000
/ asset
£’000
38,515
44,586
(44,586)
44,586
(6,071)

-

1,393
1,393

(1,393)
(1,393)-

929
-

1,083

929
(1,083)

929
929

1,083
2,476

(154)
(1,547)

245
711
(700)
39,700

245
(700)
46,607

711
(6,907)

(4,136)

(1,245)
(4,007)
(2,933)
-

1,245
4,007
2,933
(4,136)

(4,136)

(8,185)

4,049

35,564

38,422
38,422

35,564
(38,422)
(2,858)

35,564
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

GMPF Scheme 3 (City South Manchester Housing Trust Scheme)
Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets, Defined Benefit Obligation and Net Liability for year
ended 31 March 2019
Period Ended 31 March 2019

Assets
£’000

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Opening position at 31 March 2018
Service costs
Current service cost
Past service cost
Total service cost
Net interest
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit
obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in profit
or (loss)
Cashflows
Plan participants contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Expected closing position
Remeasurements
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience
Return on assets excluding amounts
included in net interest
Total remeasurements recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 March 2019

35,463
35,463
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Obligations Net (liability)
£’000
/ asset
£’000
35,463
38,379
(38,379)
38,379
(2,916)

-

1,375
477
1,852

(1,375)
(477)
(1,852)

962
-

1,056

962
(1,056)

962
962

1,056
2,908

(94)
(1,946)

252
738
(588)
36,827

252
(588)
40,951

738
(4,124)

1,688

3,635
-

1,688

3,635

(1,947)

38,515
38,515

44,586
44,586

38,515
(44,586)
(6,071)

(3,635)
1,688
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

Sum of GMPF Schemes 2 and 3
Scheme assets and liabilities

2020
£ ‘000
77,098
(72,386)

2019
£ ‘000
84,597
(85,479)

Net defined benefit asset

4,712

(882)

Amounts charged/(credited) to income statement
Current service cost
Past service cost
Departicipation debt triggered

2020
£ ‘000
1,982
-

2019
£ ‘000
1,900
955
-

Amounts charged to operating costs

1,982

2,855

(2,030)
2,064

(2,126)
2,051

34

(75)

Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions - liabilities
Other experiences gains/losses - liabilities
Return on net assets excluding amounts in net interest

2020
£ ‘000
(2,474)
(7,024)
(6,441)
9,200

2019
£ ‘000
6,520
(3,729)

Net actuarial movements in other comprehensive income

(6,739)

2,791

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities

Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost of scheme liabilities
Net interest charge / (credit)

Amounts charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

GMPF Schemes 2 and 3 Key Assumptions
Financial assumptions
31 March 2020
% per annum
2.3
2.7
1.9

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Future pension increases

31 March 2019
% per annum
2.4
3.3
2.5

Mortality assumptions
The post-retirement mortality assumptions adopted to value the benefit obligation at 31
March 2019 is based on the CMI2013 model (2018: CMI2013 model). The assumed life
expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

Current pensioners:
Males
Females
Future Pensioners:
Males
Females

2020
No. of years

2019
No. of years

20.5
23.1

21.5
24.1

22.0
25.0

23.7
26.2

Major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets
2020
%
69
15
7
9

Equities
Bonds
Properties
Cash
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2019
%
69
15
8
8

ONE MANCHESTER LIMITED

Year ended 31 March 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

Movement in Pension Scheme valuation
The table below shows the Group pension liability as at 31 March 2019 (£3,056k) and the
movements that have occurred in the year to reflect the change to a pensions asset as at 31
March 2020 £3,259k. This is detailing the specific item on the Group Statement of Financial
Position on page 65.
The major contributing factor is the movement of scheme valuations £7,251k but this has
been offset by 2018/19 provisions relating to McCloud and GMP equalisation (£473k and
£463k) which were late calculations last year but still under the materiality threshold so
have been adjusted through reserves in 2019/20.
All figures in the table below are in £000’s.

Movement in Group Pension (liability) / Asset
Opening

Closing

Movement

OPENING Pension Liability

(3,056)

Movement on Scheme Valuations
Valuation on SHPS DB scheme
Valuation on EHP LGPS scheme
Change on CSM LGPS scheme

(3,110)
5,189
(6,071)

1,657
2,381
3,213

7,251

Additional EHP LGPS Provisions
McCloud 2018/19 impact
GMP Equalisation impact
Interest on McCloud & GMP Equalisation impact

(215)
(252)
(6)

(473)

Additional CSM LGPS Provisions
McCloud 2018/19 impact
GMP Equalisation impact
Interest on McCloud & GMP Equalisation impact

(287)
(170)
(6)

(463)

CLOSING Pension Asset

(1,453)
7,570
(2,858)

3,259
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Pension scheme impact on reserves
Similarly, on the following page is a table that shows how the reserves movement of
£7,276k from the Group Statement of Changes in Reserves on page 67. Again, the major
impact to the reserves movement is the changes in in our scheme values but we have also
seen the impact of other transactions in the year that have contributed to the change. For
example, where our employer payments have not matched service costs, interest on Assets
and obligations, together with the McCloud and GMP equalisation impact have all
contributed towards the movement. All figures are in £000’s.
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11.

Pensions - Group (continued)

Movement on SHPS valuation
Opening Valuation
Less closing Valuation
SHPS net (income) / costs for the year
Employer Contributions
Current Service Costs
Expenses
Net interest on DB obligation
Interest income on Assets
Interest cost on DB Obligation

(3,110)
(1,453)

1,657

575
(371)
(8)

(196)

220
(292)

72
1,533

Movement on LGPS valuation (EHP)
Opening Valuation
Less closing Valuation
LGPS scheme net (income) / costs for the year
Employer Contributions
Current Service Costs
LGPS net interest (income) / costs
Interest income on Assets
Interest cost on DB Obligation
2018/19 Impact of McCloud & GMP Equalisation on LGPS
McCloud
GMP Equalisation
Interest

5,189
7,570

2,381

220
(589)

369

1,101
(981)

(120)

(215)
(252)
(6)

(473)
2,157

Movement on LGPS valuation (CSM)
Opening Valuation
Less closing Valuation
LGPS scheme net (income) / costs for the year
Employer Contributions
Current Service Costs
LGPS net interest (income) / costs
Interest income on Assets
Interest cost on DB Obligation
2018/19 Impact of McCloud & GMP Equalisation on LGPS
McCloud
GMP Equalisation
Interest

(6,071)
(2,858)

3,213

711
(1,393)

682

929
(1,083)

154

(287)
(170)
(6)

(463)
3,586

Total pensions scheme movements
impacting on Group reserves

7,276
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12.

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities

The association did not suffer a tax charge during the period due to its charitable status and
the charitable nature of its activities.
The group tax charge was £nil (2019: £270). There was no deferred tax charge or balances in
the current or prior period.
2020

2019

£ ‘000
12,673

£ ‘000
16,242

2,408
(2,408)
-

3,086
(6)
(3,080)
(2)

-

(2)

Current tax reconciliation - Group
Surplus on ordinary activities before tax
Tax on surplus on ordinary activities at standard CT rate of 19% (2019:
19%)
Deferred tax not recognised
Charitable income not chargeable to tax
Over Provision in Previous Year
Actual current and total taxation charge / (Credit)
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13.

Tangible fixed assets – housing properties
Group
Social
Housing
Shared
housing
properties
ownership
properties
for letting
properties
held for
under completed
letting construction
£ ’000
£ ’000
£’000

Cost
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Schemes
Completed
Works to existing
properties
Cladding
Disposals

Shared
ownership
properties
Total
under
housing
construction properties
£ ’000
£ ’000

224,511
6,293

23,423
20,618
(6,293)

2,115
1,483

3,306
2,222
(1,483)

253,355
22,840
-

1,759

-

-

-

1,759

2,871
(3,348)

-

(29)

(1,267)

2,871
(4,644)

232,086

37,748

3,569

2,778

276,181

Depreciation
At 1 April 2019
Charged in year
Eliminated on
disposal

62,688
6,434
(1,367)

-

17
-

43
-

62,705
6,477
(1,367)

At 31 March 2020

67,755

-

17

43

67,815

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

164,331

37,748

3,552

2,735

208,366

At 31 March 2019

161,823

23,423

2,098

3,306

190,650

At 31 March 2020
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13.

Tangible fixed assets – housing properties (continued)
Association

Cost
At 1 April 2019
Assets recognised on
Group Simplification
Additions
Schemes Completed
Works to existing
properties
Cladding
Disposals
At 31 March 2020

Social
housing
properties
held for
letting
£ ’000

Housing
properties
for letting
under
construction
£ ’000

Shared
ownership
properties
completed

72
224,485

23,497

2,115

3,389

72
253,486

6,293
1,759

20,627
(6,293)
-

1,483
-

2,222
(1,483)
-

22,849
1,759

2,871
(3,348)

-

(29)

(1,267)

2,871
(4,644)

232,132

37,831

3,569

2,861

276,393

£ ’000

Shared
ownership
properties
Total
under
housing
construction properties
£ ’000
£ ’000

Depreciation
At 1 April 2019
Depreciation
recognised on Group
Simplification
Charged in year
Eliminated on disposal

3
62,685

-

17

-

3
62,702

6,434
(1,367)

-

-

43
-

6,477
(1,367)

At 31 March 2020

67,755

-

17

43

67,815

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

164,377

37,831

3,552

2,818

208,578

At 31 March 2019

69

-

-

-

69
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Group Housing Properties Book Value net of depreciation and
impairment
Freehold land and buildings
Long leasehold land and buildings

2020
£ ‘000
188,372
19,994

2019
£ ‘000
175,567
15,083

Total

208,366

190,650

Amounts capitalised
Amounts charged to income and expenditure account

2020
£ ‘000
4,615
3,587

2019
£ ‘000
7,349
2,951

Total

8,202

10,300

Group expenditure on works to existing properties

14.

Group Tangible fixed assets - other
Freehold
Furniture Computers Plant and
offices fixtures and and office equipment
fittings equipment
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
£ ‘000
£ ‘000

Motor
Vehicles

Total

£’000

£ ‘000

Cost
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Disposals

11,531
230

543
79

3,133
483

75
72

18
-

15,300
864

At 31 March 2020

11,761

622

3,616

147

18

16,164

3,076
238

103
155

2,032
771

47
34

6
7

5,264
1,205

At 31 March 2020

3,314

258

2,803

81

13

6,469

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

8,447

364

813

66

5

9,695

At 31 March 2019

8,455

440

1,101

28

12

10,036

Depreciation
At 1 April 2019
Charged in year
Impairment
Disposals
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15.

Group Tangible fixed assets – investment properties

At 1 April 2019
Additions
Schemes Completed
Revaluation
At 31 March 2020

Market Rent
properties
held for
letting
£ ’000
6,049
31,042
1,977

Investment
Properties under
construction
£ ’000
29,112
1,853
(31,042)
28

Total
£ ’000
35,161
1,853
2,005

39,068

(49)

39,019

The Group’s completed investment properties are valued annually on 31 March 2020 at fair
value, determined by an independent, professionally qualified valuer.
15.

Association Tangible fixed assets – investment properties

At 1 April 2019
Additions
Schemes Completed
Revaluation
At 31 March 2020

Market Rent
properties
held for
letting
£ ’000
6,049
31,042
1,816

Investment
Properties under
construction
£ ’000
29,320
2,066
(31,042)
29

Total
£ ’000
35,369
2,066
1,845

38,907

373

39,280

Association Investment properties show a slightly higher figure to reflect the 1% fee that
One Manchester Developments charges that is stripped out on Group consolidation.
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15.

Group Tangible fixed assets – investment properties (continued)

The valuations were undertaken in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors' (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. Investment properties are held at open
market value subject to existing tenancies.
The surplus on revaluation of investment property arising of £1,845k (2019: surplus of
£416k) has been credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year. The
historic cost of investment properties is £31,636 (2019: £29,622k).
With the outbreak of Covid-19 the valuers are able to attach less weight to previous market
evidence for comparison purposes, to inform opinions on value. For this reason the
valuations are reported on the basis of “material valuation uncertainty” as per VPS 3 and
VPGA 10 of the RICS Red Book Global. Consequently, less certainty and a higher degree of
caution. This is a standard caveat in the current climate and assurance can be taken from
the report provided by the valuer.
16.

Investments in subsidiaries

The following are wholly owned subsidiaries of One Manchester Limited:
Name

Activity

One Manchester Treasury Limited
One Manchester Developments Limited
One Manchester Property Limited

Investment company - funding
Property development
Property development

The association owns the entire share capital of One Manchester Treasury Limited (£1). All
entities are companies registered in the United Kingdom.
Following a Group Simplification exercise, that took place 1st April 2019 – two former
subsidiaries: Eastlands Homes Partnership Limited and City South Manchester Housing Trust
Limited formally completed a transfer of engagements of all the trade, assets and liabilities
to One Manchester Limited (parent company of the Associations):

17.

Stock

Shared ownership properties:
- Under construction
Materials stock
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2020
£ ‘000

2019
£ ‘000

1,243
178

1,709
304

1,421

2,013
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18.

Debtors

Due within one year
Rent and service charges receivable
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts

2020
£’000

Group
2019
£’000

4,768
(2,688)

4,340
(2,357)

4,768
(2,688)

-

2,080
1,224
12
2,115
-

1,983
1,079
1,299
5
-

2,080
1,224
889
-

325
923

5,431

4,366

4,193

1,696

Net rent and service charges receivable
Other debtors
Other taxation / social security creditors
Prepayments and accrued income
Recoverable VAT debtor
Amounts owed from Group undertakings

19.

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Fixed Asset Investments

448

Group
2020
£’000
50

One Manchester Property Limited investment in Joint Venture

2019
£’000
50

This JV investment is funded by the intercompany loan referred to on page 66.
20.

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors
Rent and service charges received in advance
VAT & RTB Sharing agreements – MCC Council
Accruals and deferred income
Other taxation / social security creditors
Disposal Proceeds Fund (note 22a)
Other creditors
Social housing grants received in advance
Deferred capital grant (note 23)
Loans payable within one year (note 24)
Amounts owed to group undertakings

2020
£’000
2,172
2,511
1,575
7,328
689
543
3,761
3,393
-

Group
2019
£’000
1,281
2,317
2,170
7,226
626
714
400
341
3,867
2,956
-

21,972

21,898

Association
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
1,613
967
2,511
1,575
4,732
982
690
334
517
3,761
3,393
1,166
84
19,958

Amounts owed to group undertakings is interest free and repayable on demand.
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21.

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group

Debt (note 24)
Less unamortised Arrangement Fees
Deferred capital grant (note 23)
Recycled Capital Grant Fund > 1 yr (note 22b)

22a.

Association

2020
£’000
152,551
(2,692)
106,373
48

2019
2020
£’000
£’000
120,943 152,551
(1,992) (2,692)
100,527 106,373
30
48

2019
£’000
-

256,280

219,508 256,280

-

Disposal Proceeds Fund (DPF)
Group

At 1 April 2019 / 2018
Additions
Interest
Utilised
Balance at 31 March 2020 / 2019

Association

2020
£’000
714

2019
£’000
1,068
4

2020
£’000
714

(714)

(358)

(714)

2019
£’000
-

-

714

-

-

Amounts within the Disposal Proceeds fund will become repayable to Homes England if they
are not utilised within a period of three years from the date of disposal.
22b.

Recycled Capital Grant Fund (RCGF)

At 1 April 2019 / 2018
Additions
Interest
Utilised
Balance at 31 March 2020 / 2019
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Group

Association

2020
£’000
30
18

2019
£’000
30
-

2020
£’000
30
18

2019
£’000
-

48

30

48

-
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23.

Deferred capital grant – Group

Net deferred capital grant at start of year
Total Grant received
Less Grant received in advance
Grant disposals
Grant amortisation

Net deferred capital grant due in less than one year
Net deferred capital grant due in more than one year

2020
£’000
104,394
11,006
(1,435)
(3,831)

2019
£’000
100,332
9,252
(341)
(1,073)
(3,776)

110,134

104,394

3,761
106,373

3,867
100,527

110,134

104,394

Gross accumulated capital grant received is £169,235k (2019: £158,252k). Total
accumulated revenue grant received is £41,909k (2019: £41,909k).
24.

Debt analysis

On 1 April 2015, following the creation of the One Manchester Group loans within the
groups two registered providers were repaid in full and redrawn in the name of One
Manchester Treasury Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of One Manchester Limited, the
group parent. Note no payment was physically made and debt was transferred by the
lenders.
Group

Within one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
After five years

Association

2020
£’000
3,393
3,831
32,934
115,785

2019
2020
£’000
£’000
2,956
3,393
3,393
3,831
39,550 32,934
78,000 115,785

2019
£’000
-

155,943

123,899 155,943

-

Security
The bank loans are secured by a floating charge over the assets of the group and by fixed
charges on individual properties.
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25.

Net Debt Reconciliation
As at 31 Mar
2019

Cash flows

Other NonCash
Movements

As at 31
Mar 2020

11,264
-

28,774
-

-

40,038
-

11,264

28,774

-

40,038

(2,956)
(120,943)

(437)
(35,000)

-

(3,393)
(155,943)

(123,899)

(35,437)

-

(159,336)

(112,635)

(6,663)

-

(119,298)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash
Overdrafts
Cash Equivalents

Borrowings
Debt Due < 1 Year
Debt Due > 1 Year

TOTAL

26.

Non-equity share capital

The shares provide members with the right to vote at general meetings, but do not provide
any rights to dividends or distributions on a winding up.
27.

Group financial commitments

Capital expenditure commitments were as follows:
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts
Expenditure authorised by the Board, but not contracted

2020
£ ‘000
31,798
31,377

2019
£ ‘000
17,181
37,860

63,175

55,041

2020
£ ‘000
32,500
1,661
4,621
24,393

2019
£ ‘000
34,750
1,556
7,819
10,916

63,175

55,041

Capital commitments for the Group will be funded as follows:

Existing loan facilities
First tranche and outright sale of properties
Grants
Existing reserves
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28.

Group operating leases

The association had minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as set
out below:
2020
£ ‘000
Motor Vehicles, office equipment and computers expiring:
Within one year
One to five years

438
226

449
689

664

1,138

2020
£ ‘000
Land & Buildings expiring:
Within one year
One to five years
Beyond five years

29.

2019
£ ‘000

2019
£ ‘000

22
65
23

18
79
32

110
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Contingent liabilities

The Group had no contingent liabilities requiring disclosure at 31 March 2020 (2019: £Nil).
30.

Financial Instruments - Group

The financial instruments may be analysed as follows:
2020
£ ‘000
Financial Assets
Financial Assets measured at historical cost:
- Trade receivables
- Other receivables
- Current asset investments
- Cash and cash equivalents
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2019
£ ‘000

2,080
2,384
40,038

1,983
1,428
11,264

44,502

14,675
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30.

Financial Instruments – Group (continued)
2020
£ ‘000

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
- Loans payable
Financial liabilities measured at historical cost:
- Trade creditors
- Other creditors

2019
£ ‘000

155,944

123,899

2,172
122,139

1,402
117,503

280,255

242,804

Financial assets measured at historical cost comprise trade debtors, other debtors, and
amounts owed by associated undertakings.
Financial liabilities measured at historical cost comprise trade creditors and other creditors.
The Group’s loan facilities are sterling denominated. The interest rate profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities at 31 March was:
2020
£ ’000

2019
£ ’000

Floating rate
Fixed rate

1,943
154,000

19,899
104,000

Total (note 24)
Less: Arrangement fees

155,943
(2,692)

123,899
(1,992)

Total

153,251

121,907

The floating rate financial liabilities comprise bank loans and overdrafts that bear interest at rates
based on the three-month LIBOR.
Fixed rate loan rates range from 2.44% to 7.08% and the average rate during the year was 6.43%.
The debt maturity profile is shown in note 24.
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31.

Related parties

The Board includes three tenant members who hold tenancy agreements on normal terms and
cannot use their position to their advantage. The rent charged for the year was £3,926.50 for the
first tenant and the tenant had a credit balance of £403.11 at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019:
credit balance of £297.64). The rent charged for the year to the second tenant was £4,297.50 and
the tenant had a credit balance of £343.37 at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: credit balance of
£716.82). The rent charged for the year to the third tenant was £3,456.00 and the tenant had a
credit balance of £261.36 at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: credit balance of £146.48).
Two members of the Board (one who is co-opted) are local authority appointed and are
councillors. All transactions with the council are on normal commercial terms and the councillors
are not able to use their position to their advantage.
One Manchester Limited has 14.3% control over JV North and has paid £25,194 (2019:
£19,812) in costs during the year. There were no year-end balances with the company (2019:
£Nil).
The Company provides management services, other services and loans to its subsidiaries. The
company also receives charges from its subsidiaries.
Intra-group management fees are receivable by the Company from its subsidiaries to cover the
running costs the Company incurs on its behalf in managing the subsidiaries.
Intra-group interest is charged by the Company’s subsidiary One Manchester Treasury
Limited to Group subsidiaries at the rates incurred by the Group on its bank loans plus a
margin of 0.1% (2019: 0.1%).
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32.

Business combinations

On 31 March 2019 in order to simplify the Group structure, Eastlands Homes Partnership
Limited (EHP) and City South Manchester Housing Trust Limited (CSM) both completed a
transfer of engagements into One Manchester Limited (OML). The three registered providers
of social housing were consolidated into a single entity (One Manchester Limited). All assets
and liabilities of EHP and CSM that existed at that date were transferred at book value.
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 March 2019
EHP
£’000

CSM
£’000

OML
£ ‘000

37,545

19,889

57,434

(25,441)

(14,980)

(40,421)

4,713

1,626

6,339

Operating surplus: continuing activities

16,817

6,535

23,352

Interest receivable and other income
Interest payable and similar charges
Movement in fair value of investment properties

195
(4,489)
194

15
(3,298)
222

201
(7,787)
416

Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation

12,717

3,474

16,191

-

2

2

12,717

3,476

16,193

Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gain relating to pension scheme

(2,824)

(1,947)

(4,771)

Total comprehensive income for the year

9,893

1,529

11,422

Turnover: continuing activities
Operating costs
Surplus on the disposal of housing properties

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities
Surplus for the financial period and Total
comprehensive income
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32.

Business combinations (continued)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 March 2019

Tangible fixed assets
Housing properties
Other tangible fixed assets
Investment properties
Fixed Asset Investments
Current assets
Stock
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one
year
Intercompany Loan
Pension asset
Gain on transfer from Group undertakings
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EHP
£’000

CSM
£’000

OML
£ ‘000

116,742
10,036
4,037
-

74,043
31,332
-

190,785
10,036
35,369
-

130,815

105,375

236,190

2,013
2,380
7,173

1,459
1,994

2,013
3,839
9,167

11,566

3,453

15,019

(12,015)

(7,845)

(19,860)

(449)

(4,392)

(4,841)

130,366

100,983

231,349

(133,390)

(86,120)

(219,510)

50
2,552

(5,608)

50
(3,056)

(422)

9,255

8,833
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33.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Since the end of the financial year, the Covid-19 pandemic has had an economic effect across
all sectors. One Manchester Limited has considered this on the organisation as a going
concern; it’s resilience over the last few months and the effect on the assets of the company.
Key steps taken are:
 The Board have reviewed revised forecasts and business plans, as well as a special
Going Concern Assessment on the 23rd September 2020 to review the risks and
mitigations in line with the economic impacts. There is no impairment implications
and there is sufficient undrawn loans available, if necessary;
 EMT and Board have made some difficult decisions to delay some development and
planned maintenance work in 2020 due to lockdown, as well as minimise operating
costs over this period;
 Development and planned maintenance has re-commenced in June 2020, and the
EMT continue to reschedule work over the remainder of 2020 to minimise the impact
on our tenants and the business;
 Our plan continues to invest in our properties, as well as the regeneration of One
Manchester Limited. All plans will continue to be reviewed to ensure affordability;
 Additional operational steps have been put in place to monitor the ongoing impacts of
COVID-19 on our tenants payment profile, so we are able to both manage that impact
on the business, and support our tenants;
 We have a resilient treasury management strategy, avoiding undue risk, and have
sound financial planning and management.
There are no further post balance sheet events to report.
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